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CliftonLamnAllen LLP

CLAconnert.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Governor and

Legislative Fiscal Committee,
State of New Hampshire, and

The Board of Trustees

University System of New Hampshire
Concord, NH

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the busin
System of New Hampshire (the System), a component unit of the
for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, and the related notes,
collectively comprise the System's basic financial statements as list

ess-type activities of the University
$tate of New Hampshire, as of and
to the financial statements, which
in the table of contents.ed

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present
financial position of the University System of New Hampshire as of
respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, ca
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted i

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards gen
of America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards ar^
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section o
independent of the System and to meet our other ethical responsibili
ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the a
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

i^

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note (1) to the financial statements, the Syste
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statements No
2022, which represent changes in accounting principle. As a re
standard, the System reported a restatement for the change in accD
opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

m

CLAtCliftonUfSOriAlloii LLPl is an inrfepandent natwarlc member af CLA GI(- ie.- CLAglobaI.eom/diselalmi

4 I University System of New Hampshire

fairly, in all material respects, the
June 30, 2022 and 2021, and the

ih flows thereof for the years then
n the United States of America.

rally accepted in the United States
further described in the Auditors'

our report. We are required to be
ies in accordance with the relevant

ijjdit evidence we have obtained is

 implemented the provisions of
87 - for the year ended June 30,

suit of the implementation of this
unting principle (see Note 1). Our



The Board of Trustees

University System of New Hampshire

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presenta
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the Un
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control rel^
presentation of financial statements that are free from material mis
error.

ion of the financial statements in

ited States of America, and for the
vant to the preparation and fair

Statement, whether due to fraud or

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to ev
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial dc
continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the finan
currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly i

^luate whether there are conditions
ubt about the System's ability to
cial statement date, including any
hereafter.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statem^ts

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assur
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordai[i
material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a m
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may in
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal contn
material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statem

the financial statements as a whole

£ind to issue an auditors' report that
snce but is not absolute assurance

ce with GAAS will always detect a
aterial misstatement resulting from
jolve collusion, forgery, intentional

Misstatements are considered

ggregate, they would influence the
ts.

ol

en

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedure|s
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence reg
in the financial statements.

financial statements, whether due

responsive to those risks. Such
^rding the amounts and disclosures

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to th
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
opinion on the effectiveness of the System's internal control
expressed.

e audit in order to design audit
for the purpose of expressing an
. Accordingly, no such opinion is

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used an
accounting estimates made by management, as well as eval
financial statements.

d the reasonableness of significant
uate the overall presentation of the

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or e
that raise substantial doubt about the System's ability to
reasonable period of time.

vents, considered in the aggregate,
Continue as a going concern for a

University System of New Hampshire I 5



The Board of Trustees

University System of New Hampshire

We are required to communicate with those charged with governan^i
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings
matters that we identified during the audit.

e regarding, among other matters,
and certain internal control related

Required Supplemeritary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United Stat^
Management's Discussion and Analysis and the required suppleme
OPEB plans be presented to supplement the basic financial stsi
responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it tlo
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the requ
accordance with GAAS, which consisted of inquiries of manageme
the information and comparing the information for consistency with
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we c
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
provide any assurance.

s of America require that the
ntary information - retirement and
tements. Such information is the

financial statements, is required by
be an essential part of financial

operational, economic, or historical
ired supplementary information in
nt about the methods of preparing
management's responses to our

ained during our audit of the basic
uny assurance on the information
evidence to express an opinion or

Other Information Included in the Annual Report

Management is responsible for the other information included
information comprises of other information but does not include
auditors' report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements do
and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon

in the annual report. The other
the financial statements and our

es not cover the other information.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists be
financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to b
the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material mi
exists, we are required to describe it in our report.

sponsibility is to read the other
tween the other information and the
e materially misstated. If, based on
^statement of the other information

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Quincy, Massachusetts
October 20, 2022
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Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2022 and 2021 (Unaudited)

I. Introduction
The following Management's Discussion and Analysis summarizes the financial

condition and results of activities of the University System of New Hampshire

(USNH) for the fiscal years ended June 30,2022 and 2021 This analysis provides

a comparison of significant amounts and measures to prior periods and, where

appropriate, presents management's outlook for the future.

USNH is a Seaion 501 (c)(3) corporation organized under the laws of the State of

New Hampshire to serve the people ofthe State as the key provider of public higher

eduation for bachelor's and advanced degree students. USNH accomplishes its

mission by operating four educational institutions that collectively offer a broad array

of education, research, and public services for the State. These institutions include

the University of New Hampshire (UNH), Plymouth State University (PSU), Keene

State College (KSC), and Granite State College (GSC). In July 2021, building on the
complementary missions of GSC and the University of New Hampshire Manchester

(UNH Manchester), the USNH board of trustees voted to establish a single, merged

college located in the Manchester- Concord corridor. NH Chapter 35, Laws of 2022
codified the merger in State law. The merged entity will become a college within

UNH. A second key Initiative ofthe Integration combines GSC and UNH online

learning enterprises to strengthen, promote and expand online education for all
USNH institutions.This integration will continue in FY23 and beyond.

While selea programs are active in other regions as well as abroad, most of USNH's

activities take place at the three residential campuses (UNH Durham or UNHD, PSU,

and KSC), UNH Manchester and UNH Franklin Pierce School of Law (UNHM and

UNHL), GSC and the UNH Cooperative Extension and Small Business Development

Centers located throughout the State. The accompanying financial statements also

include the activities and balances ofthe University of New Hampshire Foundation,

Inc. (UNHF) and the Keene Endowment Association (KEA), two legally separate but

affiliated entities. (See Note 1 to the Financial Statements for additional Information

on affiliated entitles.)

II. Economic Outlook
The COVID-19 pandemic exacerbated the already changing and challenging higher

education environment. The impact of the pandemic was layered onto existing

pre-pandemic trends such as declining demographics in both New Hampshire and
New England, increases in student financial need, etc The combination ofthe more

recent return to pre-pandemic operating activity in fiscal year 2022, COVID-related

federal support, and USNH's restructuring programs initiated in fiscal year 2020 all

contributed to USNH realizing an operating margin of $31 million for fseal year 2022,

The restructuring programs included an early retirement/separation program for
approximately 480 employees, employee benefits restructuring initiatives,

system-wide shared service initiatives as well as campus-specific inltiatives.

USNH and the higher education industry will continue to face economic challenges

in the future as the pre-pandemic trends are expected to continue In future years

which most recently are also coupled with rising inflation, labor shortages, and volatile
Investment markets, USNH continues to focus on providing high-quality programs, safe

campuses for our communities and those we serve, and strategic planning aaivitles to

prepare for the future changes anticipated over the next decade.The remainder of this
report describes the results of financial operations for the year ended June 30,2022,
with comparisons to prior years.

. Financial Highlights

A. Revenues

Chart 1 below sho

operating revenui

also consistent wi

research, and pubi

providing educatiC'

million (5.0%) in

grant and contract
iliary services reven

of residential camp

other revenue of 3

whichSl.B million

during fiscal year 2

Relief and Recover^
mitigate costs rela

which wasrecogn

w

Chart 1:2022

Total = $1+B

($ in millions)

Nonresident tiii
$308

it

s USNH's revenue streams, including those classified as non-

s per GASB standards, totaling over $1 billion for FY22 which is
1 the last five fiscal years. Given our tri-fold mission of instruction,

c service, the vast majority of USNH revenues are generated by

nal and auxiliary services, Total gross revenues increased $54

al year 2022.The largest increases were related to an increase in

revenue by 33.5% ($48 million), and an increase in sales of aux-

ue by 19% ($31 million), due to the return to normal operation

uses, offset by a decrease in operating investment income and

3%. USNH received $52.2 million In Institutional HEERF awards, of

were unearned as of June 30,2022, and expeaedto be realized

)23, Additionally, the State of NH Governor's Offce for Emergency

(GOFERR) provided $33 million in federal CARES Aa aid to

ed to the COVID-19 pandemic since fiscal year 2020 and most of

zed prlorto fiscal year 2022,

Gross Revenues by Source
llion

lon

(27%)

Resident tuition
continuinc

education anc

state genera
appropriation;

$261 (23%:

Operating
income and othe

i  nvestment

revenues

$21 (2%)

Sales of
auxiliary
services

$193(17%)

Grants and
contracts

$264 (24%)

Noncapital gifts
and endowment
distributions

Studentfees $58(5%)
$24(2%)

University System of New Hampshire I 7



As shown in Chart 2 below, institutional finandal aid expenditures continue to UNH continues to ̂

surpass aid provided by grants and student loans issued. U5NH has provided over top 25 public univ

Si .8 billion in direct institutional financial aid to students over the past ten years. and well-being, ex

Additionally, approximately S328 million (19%) of the student aid total was from nancial strength. A

grants and contracts. Over $1 billion (74%) came from campuses'general funds, is committed to

and the remaining 7% ($132 million) was provided by gifts and athletics programs. education at an aff
U5NH continues to focus on affordability of its offerings which includes limiting

student and family loan debt. Also, for fiscal year 2022, students received $25 The USNH Board oi
million in direct federal aid for COVID-l 9 pandemic relief. tuition in liscal year|2

v

ifjl

ork on four strategic pillars to drive UNH to become one of the

drsities in the US,The pillars include enhancing student success
panding excellence, embracing New Hampshire, and building fi-

evidenced by the financial aid growth shown in Chart 2, USNH
uring that New Hampshire's students have access to quality

xdable price.

Chart 2: Student Aid Trends

($ in millions)

$200

$150

$100

$50

$-
2018 2019

I Finandal aid-grants & contracts

Financial aid - institutional

Student loans advanced

2020 2021 2022

As seen inTable 1 below, full-time equivalent (FTE) student enrollment has steadily

declined 10.7% since fiscal year 2018 for all institutions combined mainly due to

New England demographics and overall market changes. UNH's Durham campus,
despite the pandemic, had an increase in freshmen applications in the most recent

year as shown inTable 2.

Table 1: Full-Time Equivalent Credit Enrollment
For the Fall ofEach Fiscal Year

for NH resident stu(il

suggests that oure

to focus on multi-yi

ahead.

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

UNH (all campuses) 15,669 15,629 15,141 14,750 14,514

PSU 4,694 4,772 4,409 4,260 4,086

KSC 3,758 3,487 3,434 3,111 3,003

GSC 1,446 1,468 1,444 1,452 1,221

Total USNH PTEs 25,567 25,356 24,428 23,573 22,824

NH Resident 12,940 12,842 12,413 12,067 11,469

Nonresident 12,627 12,514 12,015 11,506 11,355

Total USNH PTEs 25,567 25,356 24,428 23,573 22,824

Enrolled as%o

acceptances

'Comparable di

8 I University System of New Hampshire

rustees approved a tuition freeze for undergraduate resident
021 and 2022 holding rates flat at the liscal year 2020 level for

NH students. Total nonresident tuition revenues increased

1.6% ($4.9 million) over the prior year. For the past five

years, at least 50% of USNH students were NH residents
when calculated on a full-time equivalency basis. New

England has historically been known as a premier location

for the pursuit of higher education, whether at a public or

private institution. Whiie that is still true, regional school-

age populations are expected to decrease overtime,

resulting in more competition for the smaller number of

NH and New England students.

USNH is working to ensure New Hampshire students are

prepared to meet the needs of the State's workforce. While

financial aid from grants has remained consistent for the

past several years, institutional financial aid grew 4.5%

($8 million) in fiscal year 2022 after a 4.2% ($7.1 million)

increase in fiscal year 2021. USNH has also made significant

changes in the way it awards financial aid. The Granite

Guarantee program, which covers the cost of tuition for all

federal Pell-grant eligible New Hampshire students, is now

in its fifth year.This program is funded with restricted gifts

as well as unrestricted sources. The State is also partnering

in this area by renewing its Governor's Scholarship Fund

ents. New Hampshire's school population data by age grouping

nrollment challenges will increase in future years. USNH continues

■iar planning to address the demographic and market changes

Table 2: Freshmen Applications, Acceptances
and Enrollees at UNH Durham*
For the Fall of Eacf Fiscal Year

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Freshmen

applications received 18,397 18,474 18,040 18,797 20,150

Acceptances a;
of applications

20% 20%

na for other campuses is available upon request.



Chart 3 below shows USNH's major revenue stream trends for the past five years. As seen in the graph, USNH
while undergraduate enrollment declined. Inflationary increases in the resident tuition rates were added for fis
revenue increased by $30.9 million (19%) compared to fiscal year 2021. TTie fiscal year 2022 increase was prim,
subsequent to the pandemic. Auxiliary revenue was still $21.2 million (9.9%) lower than fiscal year 2019 before
effects ofthe pandemic on residential campuses. For fiscal year 2022 and 2021, USNH revenue included one-ti
respeaively. Part of this revenue were student refund recoveries of $4 million and $39 million for fiscal year 2022

h e

Chart 3: Five Year Revenue History
BefyreApplication ofStudent FinancialAid

(Sin millions)

$600

$500

$400

$300

$200

$100

$0

ld resident tuition rates flat from fiscal years 2020 through 2022
;al years 2018 through 2020. During fiscal year 2022, auxiliary

la rily due to the return to normal operations at residential campuses
:he pandemic partially deemed to be attributed to the lingering
me federal and State grant revenue of $49 million and $60 million

and 2021 respeaively,

2018 2019 2020

Student fees, gifts, grants and all other revenues

Nonresident tuition

2021

Resident and continluing education tuition

State of New Hamp: hire general appropriations

2022

B. Expenditures
USNH's expenses (including expenses classified as nonoperating per GASB standards) decreased $29.8 million

expenses had increased by $80.3 million or 10% over fiscal year 2020 primarily as a result of COVID-related exf

compensation costs ($72 million, 14.2%), primarily as a result of approximately 484 employees participating in

programs approved by the USNH Board ofTrustees on June 11,2020 for a total one time cost of $56 million r

realized in fiscal year 2022 were significantly generated as a result ofthe voluntary separation programs, restn

COVID.The supplies and services expense increase of $39.7 million (17.3%) was mainly driven by $27 million

inflationary cost increases.

or 3.3% over the fiscal year 2021 level after fiscal year 2021

enses.The largest reduction over prior year was in nongrant

COVID-related voluntary retirement and separation incentive

ebognized in fiscal year 2021. Employee compensation savings
u ituring initiatives as well as temporary savings associated with

crease in direct grant aaivity and additionally as a result of

ithi'

fd

During fiscal year 2022, restruauring efforts that included multiple shared service centers for the System in

services, human resources, research administration and other back-office and administrative services continu

improved service, cost savings, increased efficiencies, reduced risk and improvements, and refinements to sha^i
ofthe financial restruauring, USNH established a new Financial Operation Center (FOC) that serves all campu

employee travel reimbursement), payroll, non-student accounts receivable and general accounting and finan;

areas of procurement, information technology, financial

The primary goals ofthe restructuring efforts include

ed services activities will continue into the future. As part

es in the areas of accounts payable (external vendors and

iai reporting.
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Chart 4: Expenses by Functional Classifications
(Sinmillionsj

Instaiction

Student financial aid

Auxiliary services

Academic and student support

Research and public service

Depreciation

Operations and maintenance

Institutional support

Fundraising and communications

Interest expense

$0

2022 = $1,098 Total

$50

2021 =$1,121 Total

SlOO

l2020 = $1,032Total

$150 $200 $250

Chart 4 displays USNH's expenses for the past three fiscal years by functional rather

than natural classification. The decrease in instruction expenses was primarily the result

of the voluntary separation programs undertaken in fiscal year 2021. Fiscal year 2021

had significant one-time costs associated with the separation programs while fiscal

year 2022 had savings as a result of the separation programs. Student financial aid

continued to increase as noted above. Auxiliary services expenses increased $9 million

over the prior year as a result of the return to normal operatons in athletics and dining

and residential aaivity. Research costs increased due to an increase in grant activity,

primarily at the UNH campus, including $23 million for the National Aeronautics and

Space Administration and Si 4 million in State grants.The fiscal year 2021 refleas the

costs related to COVID-19 mitigation strategies and the voluntary separation incentive

programs in all funaional classifications. (Additional detail on operating expenses by

function can be found in Note 14 to the Financial Statements.)

C. Capital spending
The campuses had several major capital projeas under construction in fiscal year

2022. Major projects included the Biological Sciences Project ($18M), Central Heat

Plant Line Replacement Project ($4M), and Health Sciences Initiative Project ($3M),

all at UNH.

During the past ten years, operating and internal funds totaling $130 million were

used to supplement the lower amount of state appropriations as compared

to what had been received in the prior decade. Effective July 1,2020, the State

of New Hampshire appropriated $42 million in capital funds for the Biological

Sciences Spaulding Hall at UNH, and KSC's Elliot Student Service Success Center

to be spent through June 30,2025, As a result of the State allocating $9 million

toward the health sciences initiative to increase enrollments in nursing and other

fields, in late 2021, UNH opened the new Health Simulation Center on the Durham
campus. However, due to limited resources, there are still many buildings in need of
improvement at each campus. USNH campuses continue to strategically prioritize

the available limited funding for capital assets, focusing on life/safety projects as
priorities and most critical needs.

USNH is onlyauth

related debt servic

(housing, dining.

rized to issue debt for self-supporting, auxiliary projects. The

a is then funded by student fees for each type of auxiliary service

recreation). No new debt has been issued since 2017.

Chart 5 shows the f unding sources for USNH's capital spending over the past fifteen

years. USNH spent over $1 billion during this time to construct and renovate buildings

and infrastructure it all campuses. General funds of $682 million were the largest

sources of funding of capital projects followed by auxiliary funds of $227 million

and then State apf iropriations of $ 175 million. Depreciation and amortization

expenses of $635 million were recorded during the same period which includes

lease amortization totaling $7 million starting in fiscal year 2021. (See Notes 5 and 8

to the Financial Stc tements for additional information on property and equipment,

and debt balances

Chart 5: Cap
Total $1.3 Bil

($ in millions)

)tal Funding Sources, 2008-2022
ion

Gifts and grants
$85 (7%)

Auxiliary fund;
$227(17%

New debt

$148(11%)

State capital
appropriation

$175(13°/
Education and
general funds
$682 (52%)
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D. Investing Activities
Cash and short-term investment balances totaled approximately S255 million

and $216 million on June 30,2022 and June 30,2021, respectively. (See Note 2 to

the Financial Statements for additional information on cash, cash equivalents and

short-term Investments.) USNH's long-term investments are primarily derived from

endowment gifts intended to be invested in perpetuity. With Board approval, USNH

also invests select large, current-use gifts, and unrestricted balances held centrally

as quasi-endowment funds. These amounts are Invested in one of three venues

depending on whether the donor contributed to a campus, the UNH Foundation

(UNHF), or the Keene Endowment Association (KEA).The investment pools are

managed to provide the highest rate of return over the long term given an acceptable

level of risk as determined by the responsible fiduciaries. The USNH Consolidated

Endowment Pool holds funds for the benefit of all campuses. The UNHF endowment

pool holds funds for the benefit of UNH only, and the KEA pool holds funds for

the benefit of K5C only. The USNH Board ofTrustees has fiduciary responsibility

for the USNH Pool, whereas the separate boards of UNHF and KEA have their own

investment policies and are responsible for those investments. Below is a summary

of USNH's endowment and simiiar investment values for the past three years.

Table 3: Endowment and Similar Investments

Market Value Summary
($ in millions)

As of June 30,

2022 2021 2020

USNH Pool $557 5 663 $534

UNHF Pool 266 297 236

KEA Pool 17 17 14

Funds held in trust 17 19 15

Life Income/Ajnnufty Funds 5 5 4

$862 $1,001 $803

While the two larger pools are primarily invested in funds, the KEA pool primarily

holds individual stock and bond investments. As shown in Table 4 to the right,

the KEA pool net gains over the past three years averaged 5.5% and the USNH and
UNHF pools averaged 7.7% and 7.1 %, respeaively, before distributions. Ail three pools'
returns were impacted by the financial market declines in 2022.

Distributions from the endowment and trust funds totaied approximately $41

million in fiscal year 2022.This compares to $38 miilion for fiscal year 2021, The
difference is primarily due to favorable market value increases on average.

Distributions of approximately 526 million were made from the USNH pool and

trusts, along with $14 million from the UNHF pool and $619,000 from the KEA pool.
Distributions represent a smaller percentage of the USNH pool because USNH

holds several quasi-endowment funds for future, rather than current use. Fiscal year

2022 market losses have resulted in a limited number of endowment funds having

market values less than the original gift value (''underwater°funds). The net negative

returns for 2022 resulted in an increase in these underwater funds. Of the 1,621

endowment funds maintained in the various endowment pools, 125 remained

underwater at June 30,2022. This compares to only 3 underwater endowment

funds at June 30,2021 .The endowment funds were underwater by $2.8 miilion

at June 30,2022, compared to $397,000 at June 30,2021. (See Notes 4 and 13 for
further information on endowment and similar investments.)

Table 4; Pool^ Endowment Returns

USNH Pool

Gross return

investment management fees

Net return

Distributions

Net reinvested

UNHF Pool

Gross return

Investment management fees

Net return

Distributions

Net reinvested

KEA Pool

Gross return

Investment manr^gement fees

Net return

Distributions

Net reinvested

IV. Using t

tes

A. Statement!

The Statements ofH
outflows ofresoun

position. An increa

financial health. Fa

Statements of Net

investments, and da

o

Year - Ended June 30, Three Year

2022 2021 2020 Average

(6.2%)

(0.7%)

29.3%

(0,6%)

1.9%

(0.5%)

83%

(0.6%)

(6.9%) 28,7% 1.4% 7.7%

(3.8%) .(43%) (42%) (4.2%)

(10.7%) 24.2% (2.8%) 35%

(8.3%) 30.5% 2.5% 82%

(1.0%) (1.5%) (0.8%) (1.1%)

(9.3%) 29.0% 1.7% 7.1%

(4.7%) (5.3%) (5.0%) (5.0%)

(14.0%) 23.7% (3.3%) (2,1%)

(9.4%) 23.3% 4.8% 62%

(p.7%) (0.8%) (0.7%) (0.7%)

(10.1%) 22.5% 4.1% 5.5%

(3.6%) (3,2%) (4.3%) (3.7%)

(13.7%) 19.3% (02%) 1.8%

ie Financial Statements

f Net Position

let Position depia all USNH assets, liabilities, and deferred inflows/

on June 30 each year, along with the resulting net financial

e in net position over time is a primary indicator of an Institution's

tors contributing to future financial health as reported on the

'osition include the value and liquidity of financial and capital

lances of related obligations.
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Table 5 below shows condensed information from the Statements of Net Position at June 30 for the past five y 'ats. Note that we have also included certain condensed

information as of June 30,2022 by campus herein as required by regional accreditation agencies.

Table 5: Condensed Information from the Statements of Net Position as of Ji^e 30,
(Sin millions)

2018' 2019^ 2020 2021^ 2022

Cash and short-term investments $ 206 $ 224 $ 224 $ 216 S 255

Endowment and similar investments 781 809 803 1,001 862

Property and equipment, net 1,122 1,117 1,120 1,144 1,119

Other assets and deferred outflows of resources 95 92 107 113 112

Total Assets and

Deferred Outflows of Resources 2204 2,242 2,254 2,474 2,348

Derivative instruments - interest rate swaps 18 23 29 22 n

Postretirement medical benefits 90 83 91 86 78

Long-term debt 488 465 439 412 381

Other liabilities and deferred inflows of resources 160 173 198 296 257

Total Liabilities and

Deferred Inflows of Resources 756 744 757 816 727

Net investment in capital assets 665 685 709 722 723

Restricted financial resources 481 495 497 606 591

Unrestricted financial resources 302 318 291 330 307

Total Net Position $1,448 $1,498 $1,497 $1,658 $1,621

' Beginning net position restated to reflect the adoption ofGASB 75 related to postretirement medical obiic^
^ Beginning netposition restated to reflect the adoption ofGASB 83 related to asset retirementobiigations
^ Certain balances restated to reflect the adoption ofGASB 87 related to leases

ations

ed

As shown above, cash and short-term investment balances have been relatively stable In fiscal year 2018,

over the past five years. Fiscal year 2022 included a transfer of $50 million from the Statement No. 81,
quasi-endowment fund to the short-term investment fund, as approved by the Board deferred inflows o
ofTrustees, to be potentially used for future strategic Investments.The endowment 2018, respeaively.

gains were moderate in fiscal years 2018 and 2019, slightly decreased in fiscal year
2020, and a large Increase in fiscal year 2021 and a significant decrease in 2022, USNH has large lia
However, the overall net gains was $49 million (23,8%) since fiscal year 2018, primarily benefits, and add
due to favorable returns prior to fiscal year 2021. Property and equipment, net, million paid in liscil
decreased in FY22 as capital expenditures were less than annual depreciation expense. Incentives prograrji

adjusted by $45 n

Deferred inflows and outflows of resources include changes in the fair value of USNH's payments ranged

interest rate swap derivatives, accounting gains and losses related to refinancing The postretiremen
certain bonds outstanding, impacts of changes in actuarial assumptions, differences benefits provided 1

between projected and aaual earnings, and beneft payments made after the including the rema
measurement dates of USNH benefit plans. For fiscal year 2021 and 2022, deferred the Financial State

Inflows of resources also Includes deferred inflows related to leases due to the liabilities balance

adoption of GA5B 87, benefits, governm
interest rate swap

In fiscal year 2022, USNH completed a biennial actuarial valuation according to the The decrease in ac
provisions of GASB Statement No, 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for million paid to or
PostemploymenrBenefits Other than Pensions, for our postretirement medical retirement and se
obligations. The result was a decrease of $2 million in deferred outflows of resources,
and an increase of $4 million in deferred Inflows of resou'-ces due to change of
assumptions such as discount rate used, and updates to mortality assumption
tables. The fair value of interest rate swap obligations resulted in an $11 million

decrease in deferred outflows.

th

o

e UNH Foundation also adopted the provisions of GASB

'rrevocabie Split-interest Agreements, which resulted In recording

approximately $1 million and $2 million in fiscal years 2017 and

ilities related to long-term debt, postretirement medical

In fiscal year 2021 $40 million ($56 million total, net of $16

year 2021) In new liabilities related to one-time separation

s. In fiscal year 2021, lease liabilities beginning balances were

llion due to adoption of GASB 87, Bond and lease principal

I 'om $19 million to $29 million for fiscal years 2018 through 2022.

obligations represent the actuarially determined value of medical

0 certain current and former employees for various periods,

ning life of the participants in some cases, (See Notes 7 and 8 to

ments for additional information in this regard,) The other

above includes accounts payable, accrued employee

ent advances refundable under the Perkins Loan Program,

abilities related to derivative instruments and unearned revenue,

crued employee benefits in fiscal year 2022 is mainly due to $32
behalf of the beneficiaries of the COVID-related voluntary

1 laratlon Incentive programs recognized in fiscal year 2021,
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Net position is reported in three categories.The net invested in capital assets amount represents the histor

accumulated depreciation and the balance of related debt outstanding for certain auxiliary buildings. Restr
prior year gifts for specified purposes such as scholarships or academic programs, as well as campus endov'

perpetuity by the original donors ($329 million and $307 million at June 30,2022 and 2021, respectively), lii
available for any future use without legal restriaion. (See Note 15 to the Financial Statements for further de

asset, liability, and net position balances by campus as of June 30,2022 is shown below.

al cost of property and equipment reduced by total

cted financial resources include balances of current and

ment balances which were required to be invested in

restricted financial resources represent net assets that are

alls on the components of net position.) A breakdown of

Table 5A: Condensed Information from the Statement of Net Position as of Jijne 30,2022
Presented by Campus
($ in millions)

University of

New Hampshire

Campuses &

Foundation

Plymouth

State

University

IteeneSt

College

Endowm

Associat

ite

&

int

on

Granite

State

G>llege

System-

wide

Office

Total

University

System of New

Hampshire

Cash and short-term investments S 265 S 38 S 23 S25 $(96) $ 255

Endowment and similar investments 449 36 52 10 315 862

Property and equipment, net 769 179 160 8 3 1,119

Other assets and deferred outflows of resources 74 7 / 2 22 112

Total Assets and

Deferred Outflows of Resources 1,557 260 24: 45 244 2,348

Derivative instruments - interest rate swaps - - _
_ 11 11

Postretirement medical benefits 55 10 c 2 2 78

Long-term debt 153 88 8^ - 56 381

Other liabilities and deferred inflows of resources 148 18 21 3 67 257

Total Liabilities and

Deferred Inflows of Resources 356 116 11^ 5 136 727

Net investment in capital assets 577 91 75 6 (26) 723

Restricted financial resources 491 34 5^ n - 591

Unrestricted financial resources 133 19 (21 23 134 307

Total Net Position $1,201 $144 512£ $40 $108 $1,621

B. Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes In Net Position
This statement reports total operating revenues, operating expenses, other revenues and expenses, and otlji
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). There are three major components which managemer

in total net position: increase [decrease) in Net Position Before Other Ghanges (also referred to as operating

endowment gifts and net returns. The increase (decrease) in Net Position Before Other Changes is further b
by GASB reporting standards which require that certain USNH recurring revenues be shown as nonoperatir
grants, noncapital gifts, operating investment income, the ponion of endowment returns used to fund the
as nonoperating revenues by GASB. These revenue streams are important sources of funds used to supplerji
nonoperating revenue and expense, together, constitute the indicator of recurring revenues and expenses

er changes in net position, as prescribed and defined by the

t considers separately when analyzing the increase (decrease)
margin): capital appropriations and other plant changes; and

oken down into operating and nonoperating as prescribed

ig.This includes state general appropriations, federal Pell

related programs, and other revenue sources that are defined

ent tuition and fees revenue. Accordingly, operating and

for USNH.
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Table 6 shows condensed information from the Statements of Revenues, Expenses

and Changes In Net Position for the five years ended June 30,2022.

The net tuition and fees revenue in these statements reflects revenue earned

from enrolled students for academic programs, classes, and related fee-based

services. Auxiliary services revenues reflea self-supporting aaivities which provide

non-instruaional support in the form of goods and services to students, faculty,

and staff upon payment of a specific user charge or fee. These services include

housing, dining, Division I athletics, health, recreation, transportation, student union

and other programs, Grants and contracts revenues reflect amounts reimbursed by

USNH sponsors inciuding the US government. State of New Hampshire, and other

entitles.These revenues may also come from awards to other institutions that are

later contracted out to USNH campuses.

Net tuition and fees decreased because of lower undergraduate enrollment and
higher student financial need. Operating grants and contracts increased due to an

increase in grants awarded to UNH from various state programs. Sale of auxiliary

services revenue wre up S3i million in fiscal year 2022 due to the full return to

normal operations at residential campuses. The State of NH appropriations increased
in fiscal year 2021 to allow USNH to freeze undergraduate in-state tuition.

Endowment gifts' otaled $22 million in fiscal year 2022, $10 million in fiscal year

2021, and $15 milli m in fiscal year 2020. The investment return after distributions

resulted In losses c" S112 million in fiscal year 2022, after gains of $187 million in fiscal

year 2021, and loss ;s of$24 million in fiscal year 2020, The volatility of endowment

returns is a slgnific mt driver of the change in total net position each year. Operating

expenses were do vn $28 million in fiscal year 2022, after an increase of $80 million
In fiscal year 2021 jrimarily related to COVID-19 expenses including the voluntary

employee separat on programs.The fiscal year 2022 decrease in expenses is mainly

due to reduction Ir compensation as a result of the voluntary separation incen

tive programs recc gnized in fiscal year 2021 and savings from restructuring and
temporary reductit)n5, net of inflationary cost increases in utilities and supplies and
services.

The increasefdecre ise) In net position before other changes reflects USNH's operating

margin each year. JSNH's operating margin for fiscal year 2022 was $31 million. This

is primarily due to he return to normal operations for residential campus and the

savings that result'd from an approximately 10% reduaion of full-time benefited

employees as of Ji ne 30,2021, and other cost reduaion measures implemented

during the last fev\ years.

Table 6: Condensed Information from the Statements of Revenues, Expense^ and Changes in Net Position
for the Years Ended June 30,

1$ in millions)

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

OPERATING REVENUES

Tuition and fees

Less: student financial aid

Nettuitlon and fees

Grants and contraas

Sales of auxiliary services

Other operating revenue

Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES

Employee compensation

Supplies and services

Utilities, depreciation and amortization

Total Operating Expenses

Operating loss

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

State of New Hampshire general appropriations

Other nonoperating grant revenue

Noncapital gifts, investment income and other revenues

Interest expense, net

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Increase (Deaease) In Net Position Before Other Changes

OTHER CHANGES IN NET POSmON

Endowment gifts and returns, net

State capital appropriations and other changes

Total Other Changes in Net Position

Effea of adoption of new accounting standards

Total Increase (Decrease) in Net Position

$514

(188)

326

127

215

30

698

533

208

84

825

027)

26

44

(18)

133

6

45

5

50

(42)

S 14

$522

(197)

325

129

215

32

701

535

204

84

823

022)

81

26

56

JIZ)
146

24

27

2

29

(2)

$ 51

$517

(200)

317

131

166

29

643

538

191

87

816

073)

86

41

59

(16)

170

(3)

(10)

12

2

sT)

$508

(207)

301

144

162

26

633

578

230

88

896

(263)

89

83

62

(17)

217

(46)

197

9

206

$160

$505

(214)

291

192

193

31

707

508

270

90

868

06V

70

48

(15)

192

31

(90)

22

(68)
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Table 6A below provides condensed information from the Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Change s in Net Position presented by campus for the year ended
June 30,2022.

Table 6A: Condensed Information from the Statement of Revenues, Expense^ and Changes in Net Position
for the Year Ended June 30,2022

Presented by Campus
1$ in millions)

Unlversityof ^ ^
New Hampshire Colli
-  f- Stste _ ,
Campuses & ... ... End<

Foundation Aasd,

le State

lege&

I6wment

elation

Granite

State

CoUege

Systerrv

wide

OfFke

Total

University

System of New

Hampshire

OPERATING REVENUES

Tuition and fees $368 $70 $ 54 513 5  - S505

Less: student financial aid 056) i29) (24) -(5) - (214)

Net tuition and fees 212 41 30 8 - 291

Grants and contraas 179 3 6 4 - 192

Sales and auxiliary services 133 32 28
-

- 193

Other operating revenue 23 _2 _2 - 4 31

Total Operating Revenues 547 12 4 707

OPERATING EXPENSES

Employee compensation 387 47 52 11 11 508

Supplies and services 200 37 35 5 (7) 270

Utilities, depreciation and amortization 62 14 _L3 1 - 90

Total Operating Expenses 649 98 00 17 4 868

Operating loss (102) (20) (34) (5) - (m

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

State of New Hampshire general appropriations 60 13 12 4
-

89

Other nonoperating grant revenue 40 17 11 3 0) 70

Noncapital gifts, investment income and other revenues 43 3 4 1 (3) 48

Interest expense, net _i7) JD _(3) - (2)

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 136 JO 24 8 (6) 192

Increase (Deaease) In Net Position Before Other Changes 34 JO 00) 3 (6) 31

OTHER CHANGES IN NET POSmON

Endowment gifts and returns, net (48) (2) (3) (1) (36) (90)

State capital appropriations and other changes 62 7 il -

(62) 22

Total Other Changes In Net Position 14 5 n 0) (98) (68)

Total Increase (Decrease) in Net Position $ 48 < _2 ii 50 04} 5(37)

C. Statements of Cash Flows
The Statements of Cash Flows summarize transactions affecting cash and cash equivalents. Table 7 below ihows summary information from the Statements of Cash

Flows for the five years ended June 30,2022.

Table 7: Condensed 1 nformatlon from the Statements of Cash Flows for the Vears Ended June 30,

(Sin millions)

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Cash flows from:

Receipts from tuition and fees, net $328 S327 $348 $289 5294

Receipts from sales of auxiliary services 214 216 165 164 193

Receipt of state general appropriations 81 81 86 89 89

Noncapital gifts, grants and other receipts 203 198 212 282 300

Payments to and on behalf of employees (537) (532) (532) (533) (552)

Payments for supplies, services and utilities (227) (222) (211) (248) (290)

Net Cash Provided by Operating and
Noncapital Financing Activities 62 68 68 43 34

Net Cash Used In Capital Financing Activities (83) (78) (90) (80) (55)

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 10 30 12 57 46

lncrease/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents SOD $20 5 00) S 20 5 25

University System of New Hampshire I 15



These statements provide information about cash collections and cash payments made by USNH each ye
ability to generate the cash flows necessary to meet current and future obligations. Cash flows from opera
results on the Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position because of the inclusion of
latter statement is prepared on the accrual basis of accounting, meaning that it shows revenues when ear

operating and noncapital financing activities is primarily related to an increase in auxiliary revenue and re
financing aaivities for fiscal year 2022 decreased primarily due to less construction spend as a result of coc
uncertainty associated with the COVID pandemic and supply chain issues associated with the economic c

2022 is down from the prior year because of investment market decrease in fiscal year 2022.

r.The statements are designed to help readers assess our
ing activities will always be different than the operating
noncash items, such as depreciation expense, and because the

ijied and expenses as incurred. The increase In cash flows from
enue generated by grant activity. The net cash used in capital

tinued cash preservation efforts employed to address the
anditlons.The cash provided by investing activities in fiscal year

V?

□.Financial Indicators
USNH uses certain Moody's leverage ratios as primary indicators of financial health.The UFR to Debt ratio uses
outstanding long term debt balance (defined as total long term debt net of unamortized discounts/premium
Debt (SCI to Debt) ratio uses wealth that can be accessed over time or for a specific purpose to repay bond hold
to debt ratio is 50% or above and the targeted SCI to Debt ratio is 1.3 or above. The average of UFR to Debt ovdr
The 2022 and 2021 increase above the historical averages in these ratios Is due to higher than normal Investm
and the recovered auxiliary aaivlty in 2022. Both ratios reflect sufficient available support for ongoing initiative
information in this regard).

h

Chart 6: Ratios

2.27

e unresthaed net position balance as the numerator and the
) as the denominator. The Spendable Cash and Investments to
ers. USNH's historically targeted unrestrlaed financial resources
the past five years was 76%, and 1.86 for the SCI to Debt ratio,

dnt market valuations during 2021 net of market loss in 2022,
(See Notes 8 and 16 to the Financial Statements for additional

1.70.65
152

85.9%85.3%
72.9% 70.5%65.8%

2018 2019 2020 2021

B Spendable Cash and Investments to Debt
I Unrestricted Financial Resources to Debt

For further information about these financial statements, contaa the University System ofNew Hampshire, Financf
Concord, NH 03301

16 I University System of New Hampshire
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University System of New Hampshire
Statements of Net Position

($ in thousands)

Balance at June 30,

2022 2021

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $  110,832 $  85,670

Short-term investments 144,266 130,477

Accounts receivable, net 42,161 27,037

Pledges receivable - current portion 3,599 2,549

Notes receivable ■ current portion 1,594 1,742

Lease receivable - current portion 1,072 1,167

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 9,708 9,903

Total Current Assets 313,232 258,545

Noncurrent Assets

Endowment and similar investments - campuses 574,055 682,429

Endowment and similar investments - affiliated entities 287,758 318,818

Pledges receivable, net ofcurrent portion 7,231 7,131

Notes receivable, net of current portion 5,943 8,323

Lease receivable, net of current portion 6,403 7,406

Pension assets, net of obligations 714 1,557

Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation/amortization 1,119,116 1,143,525

Total Noncurrent Assets 2,001,220 2,169,189

TOTALASSETS 2,314/452 2/427,734

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 33,702 46,463

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 85,583 81,643

Deposits and unearned revenues 54,438 56,012

Accrued employee benefits - current portion 11,881 37,462

Postretirement medical benefits - current portion 7,201 5342

Long-term leases - current portion 2,438 2,598

Long-term debt - current portion 25,780 30675

Total Current Liabilities 187,321 213,732

Noncurrent Liabilities

Asset retirement and other obligations 6,311 13,847

Refundable government advances 7,674 10,715

Accrued employee benefits, net of current portion 29,252 33,926

Postretirement medical benefits, net of current portion 70,659 80,797

Derivative instruments - interest rate swaps 11,105 22,280

Long-term ieases, net of current portion 38285 40,724

Long-term debt, net of current portion 354353 381,003

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 518,139 583,292

TOTAL LIABIUT1ES 705,460 797,024

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 21,905 19,532

NET POSITION (see Note 15)

Net investment in capital assets 723,041 721,356

Restricted

Nonexpendable 328,572 306,566

Expendable 262,000 299,440

Unrestricted 307,176 330,279

TOTAL NET POSmON $1,620,789 $1,657,641

See accompanying notes to the fmancia! sta emenfs.
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University System of New Hampshire
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
($ in thousands)

For the year ended June 30,

2022 2021

OPERATING REVENUES

Resident tuition $  156,473 $  163,329

Nonresident tuition 307,767 302,827

Continuing education tuition 16,213 17,572

Student fees revenue 24,348 24,329

Total tuition and fees 504,801 508,057

Less: student financial aid - grants and contraas (30,679) (31,759)

Less: student financial aid - ai! other (183,444) (175,463)

Net tuition and fees 290,678 300,835

Grants and contracts - direa revenues 162,456 120,066

Grants and contracts - feclllties & administrative recovery 30,113 24,128

Sales of auxiliary services 193,330 162,456

Other operating revenues 30,726 26,313

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 707.303 633,798

OPERATING EXPENSES

Employee compensation - grants and contracts 71,923 69,900

Employee compensation - all other 436,115 508,122

Supplies and services - grants and contracts 104,834 77,697

Supplies and services - all other 165,235 152,627

Utilities 18,649 15,776

Depreciation and amortization 71,648 72,499

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 868,404 896,621

Operating loss (161,101) (262,823)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

State of New Hampshire general appropriations 88,500 88,500

Federal Pell grants 21,711 23,084

Other nonoperating grant revenue 48,985 60,073

Noncapital gifts 16,958 22,366

Endowment and Investment income 31,233 38,882

Interest expense, net (15,354) (16,975)

Other nonoperating revenue 422 1,498

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 192,455 217,428

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION BEFORE OTHER CHANGES 31,354 (45,395)

OTHER CHANGES IN NET POSITION

State of New Hampshire capital appropriations 18,736 4,562

Plant gifts, grants and other changes, net 3,278 4,513

Endowment and similar gifts 21,566 9,717

Endowment return, net of amount used for operations (111,786) 186,900

TOTAL OTHER CHANGES IN NET POSITION (68,206) 205,692

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION (36,852) 160,297

NET POSITION AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,657,641 1,497,344

NET POSITION AT END OF YEAR $1,620,789 $1,657,641

See accompanying notes to the financial sta ements.
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University System of New Hampshire
Statements of Cash Flows

($ in thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACnVITIES

Receipts from tuition and fees, net of student financial aid
Receipts from sales of auxiliary services
Receipts from grants, contracts and other operating revenues
Payments to employees
Payments for employee benefits
Payments for supplies, services and utilities

NET CASH USED IN OPERATING AaiVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

State general appropriations
Federal Pell and other nonoperating grants
Noncapital gifts

NET CASH PROVIDED BY NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL FINANQNG AQIVITIES

State appropriations for plant projects
Plant gifts and grants
Endowment gifts
Proceeds from issuance of debt, sale of propery and lease acquisition
Principal payments

Interest payments

Purchases and construction of property

NET CASH USED IN CAPITAL FINANCING AaiVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING AaiVITIES

Proceeds from sales of investments

Purchases of investments

Investment income

NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING AaiVITIES

INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

BEGINNING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

ENDING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH

USED IN OPERATING AClWiTIES

Operating loss
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash used in operating aaivities:

Depreciation and amortization

Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable, net

Notes receivable

Lease receivable

Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Deposits and unearned revenues

Accrued employee benefits

NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES

SIGNIFICANT NONCASH TRANSAaiONS

Endowment return, net of amount used for operations
Loss on disposal of capital assets
Construction services payable balance

See accompanying notes to the financial sta

For the year ended June 30,
2022

$ 293,739

192,999

213,123

(163,061)

(289,742)

(141,802)

88,500

71,633

15,754

175,887

12,888

8,495

20,518

110

(31,361)

(16,962)

1 1)

(54,923)

548,246

(503,242)

9%

46,000

25,162

85,670

$110332

S (161,101)

71,648

(13,527)

(512)

413

195

431

2,143

(41,492)

$(141302)

S (111,786)
(5,164)

11,266

ements.

2021

5 289,573

163,557

169,936

(389,744)

(143,329)

(247,859)

(157366)

88,500

93,432

19,160

201,092

30

4,660

9,717

3,495

(27,713)

(18,031)

(52,243)

(80,085)

435,196

(383,524)

5,518

57,190

20,331

65839

$ 85,670

$ (262,823)

72,499

(505)

560

(387)

(2,488)

15,934

(12,346)

31,690

$(157366)

186,900

(147)

7,456
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Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30,2022 and 2021

1. Summary of significant accounting policies and presentation
The University System of New Hampshire (USNH) is a not-for-profit institution of higher
education created in 1 %3 as a body politic and corporate under the laws of the State
of New Hampshire (the State) and is generally exempt from income taxes under
Seaion 501 (c)(3) ofthe Internal Revenue Code. USNH is considered a component unit
ofthe State for financial reporting purposes. The accompanying financial statements
include the accounts of the University of New Hampshire (UNH), Plymouth State
University (PSU), Keene State College (KSC), and Granite State College (GSC) as well
as certain affiliated entities discussed below, UNH, PSU, KSC and GSC are colleaively
referred to in the accompanying fnancial statements as"campuses.'

Affiliated aitltles and related parties

Governmental accounting standards require that all potential component units be
evaluated for inclusion in the financial statements of the primary government of the
reporting entity. USNH's policy on 'Foundations Established for the Benefit of USNH or
its Component Institutions'states that the USNH Board ofTrustees retains control over

the activities of any affiliated foundation. The USNH policy further states that USNH
has the legal authority to terminate the existence of any affiliated foundation, at
which time ownership ofthe related assets would revert to USNH.Two legally separate
affiliated foundations are impacted by this policy and, accordingly, are considered
blended component units of USNH. The University of New Hampshire Foundation,
Inc. (UNHF) and the Keene Endowment Association (KEA) are colleaively referred to In
the accompanying financial statements as"affiliated enttties.''The associated revenues,
expenses, assets, liabilities, deferred inflows, deferred outflows, and net position of
UNHF and KEA are ftjily consolidated with those ofthe campuses in the accompanying
financial statements, and all associated inter-entity activity has been eliminated.

UNHF, Inc was Incorporated in 1989 as a not-for-profit, tax-exempt organization.
Its purpose is to solicit, collea, invest, and disburse funds for the sole benefit ofthe

University of New Hampshire. The University of New Hampshire funds a portion of
the operating expenses of UNHF, UNHF is governed by its own Board of Directors,
the membership of which Includes the President ofthe University of New Hampshire
and up to three other members of the USNH Board ofTrustees. UNHF has a separate

financial statement audit each year. Condensed financial information for UNHF is
included in Note 17. The KEA was organized in 1957 as a separate charitable entity to
provide financial assistance to deserving students at Keene State College. Income is
distributed at the discretion ofthe Trustees of KEA.

Basis ofaccounting
The accompanying fnancial statements have been prepared In accordance with US
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) prescribed by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting.

USNH follows the requirements of the "business-type activities"(BTA) model as

defined by GASB Statement No. 35. Basic Financial Statements-and Managemenfs
Discussion and Analysis for Public Colleges and Universities. BTAs are defined as those
that are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties for goods or
servlces.The Statement requires that resources be classified into the
following net position categories, as more fully detailed in Note 15:

Net investment in capital assets: Property and equipment at historical cost or fair
value on date of acquisition, net of accumulated depreciation and outstanding

principal balances of debt attributable to the acquisition or construaion of
those assets.

Restricted nonecpendable: Resources subjea to externally Imposed stipulations that
they be maintained permanently by USNH.These funds Include the historical gift value
of restriaed true endowment funds.

20 I University System of New Hampshire

Restricted expend ible: Resources whose use by USNH is subject to externally
imposed stipulation;. Such funds include the accumulated net gains on donor-
restriaed"true"endc wment funds; the fair value of restriaed funds funaioning as
endowment, restria ad funds loaned to students; restriaed gifts and endowment
income; and other similarly restriaed funds.

Unrestricted: Resoi rces that are not subjea to externally Imposed stipulations.
Substantially all unre^triaed net position funds are designated to support academic
research, or auxiliary enterprises; invested to funaion as endowment; or committed
to capital construaicm projects.

The preparation of fi lanciai statements In conformity with GAAP requires manage
ment to make estim ites and assumptions that affea the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities, the disilosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the dates ofthe
fmancial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during
the reporting periods Aaual results could differ from these estimates.The most
significant areas that require management estimates relate to valuation of certain
investments and der vative instruments, useful life and related depreciation of capital
assets, and accruals fbr postretirement medical and other employee-related benefits.

Investments are maintained with established fmancial institutions whose credit is

evaluated by manag ament and the respealve governing boards of USNH and its
affiliated entitles. Investments of operating cash in money market and other mutual
funds are generally nrcorded as cash equivalents.These amounts are invested for
purposes of satlsfyini; current operating liabilities and generating investment income
to support ongoing 3perations. Short-term Investments represent highly liquid

amounts held for otf ler current liabilities.

ilpniProperty and equ

value on the date of

lease assets, the me

cost of 55,000 or mo

greater are also

at the present value
Depreciation of prop
estimated useful live

componentizedfortjh'
ments are depreclati
for equipment range

depreciation. USNH

are held for exhibitioh

) capital

ed

e

Library collealonsa

the University of Ne\
colleaions which

a straight-line basis.

ari!

Deposits and unearr

USNH providing goc
Perkins Loans tostuc

Direa Loan proceed
Lease liabilities are n

type of lease.

nt are recorded at original cost for purchased assets or at fair
donation in the case of gifts, except for Intangible right to use

■ajsurement of which is discussed in Note 9. Equipment with a unit
e is capitalized. Building improvements with a cost of $50,000 or

ized.The value of equipment acquired under leases is recorded
)f the minimum lease payments at the inception ofthe lease,
■erty and equipment is calculated on a straight- line basis over the
ofthe respeaive assets.The cost of certain research buildings is
e purpose of calculating depreciation. Buildings and improve-
over useful lives ranging from 4 to 50 years. Depreciable lives

from 3 to 30 years. See Note 5 for additional information on
ioes not record donated works of art and historical treasures that
, education, research, and public service.

recorded as an expense in the period purchased, except for
V Hampshire Franklin Pierce School of Law (UNHL) library
capitalized annually and depreciated over a ten-year period on

ed revenue consist of amounts billed or received in advance of
ds or services. Advances from the U.S. Government for Federal
ents are reported as government advances refundable, Federal
are posted to student accounts as approved and drawn weekly.

Cognized based on specific accounting rules applicable to the

Operating revenues include tuition and fees, grants and contraas, sales of auxiliary
services, and other cperating revenues.Tuition and fee revenues are reported net
of student financial uid discounts and allowances. Operating expenses include
employee compeni ation and benefits, supplies and sen/Ices, utilities, and
depreciation. Operating expenses also include early retirement and other
separation incentive stipends and benefits promised to certain employees in
exchange for termiration of employment. All such termination benefits are accrued



Statement No. 87, a

to-use lease asset, a

inflow of resources,

about government
position as of July 1
information on leas

as ofthe date the termination agreements are signed and are presented at net
present value at year end. The operating expenses also included the use of federal
Higher Education Emergency Relief Fund and the State of New Hampshire Governor's
Office for Emergency Relief and Recovery awards. Nonoperating revenues (expenses)
include all other revenues and expenses except certain changes in long-term plant,
endowment and other net position funds, which are reported as other changes in net
position. Operating revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded
when Incurred. Restriaed grant revenue is recognized only to the extent of applicable
expenses incurred or, in the case of fixed-price contracts, when the contract terms are
met or completed.

Unconditional pledges of non-endowment gifts are presented net of estimated
amounts deemed uncollectible after discounting to the present value of expected
future cash flows. Because of uncertainties regarding their realization and valuation,
bequest intentions and other conditional promises are not recognized as assets until
the specified conditions are met. In accordance with GASB requirements, endowment
pledges expected to be received over the next ten years, totaling $9,313,000 and
S10,563,000 at June 30,2022 and 2021, respectively, have not been reported In the
accompanying financial statements. USNH generally uses restriaed funds first when
an expense is incurred where both restriaed and unrestriaed funds are available,

Endowment return used for operations per application of the Board-approved
endowment spending policy is reported as nonoperating revenue. Net realized and
unrealized gains/losses and interest/dividend income earned on endowment and
similar investments, together with the excess (deficiency) of these earnings over the
return used for operations, are reported as other changes in net position.

The System's financial statements include comparative financial information. Certain
prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.

New reporting standards
The System's financial statements and notes for fiscal 2022 and 2021 as presented
herein reflea the adoption ofthe of Governmental Accounting Standards Board's
new accounting standard, GASB Statement No. 87, feoses, as ofJuly 1,2020. Under

The components of cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments are summarized below (S in thousands):

essee is required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-
ffid a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred
thereby enhancing the relevance and consistency of information
leasing aaivities. As a result ofthis adoption the opening net
2021, was reduced by $983,000. See Note 9 for additional

Es.

2. Cash, cash e
Cash equivalents an

policy and guidelines
insurance of USNH

policy and guldellnds
In the aggregate thrx
maturity, and rating
fund managers. The
tor Service and com

agreements must bd
of the face value by
sponsored enterpris

tion's total deposits

cjuivalentsand short-term investments
J short-term investments are recorded at fair value. USNH's investment

specify permitted instruments, durations, required ratings and
cjash, cash equivalents and short-term Investments. The investment

are intended to mitigate credit risk on investments individually and
ugh restriaions on investment type, liquidity, custodian, dollar level,
ategory. Ivloney market funds are placed with the largest national
e llinds must be rated AAA by Standard & FPor's and Moody's Inves-
Dly with Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 2A-7. Repurchase
fully collateralized at 102% ofthe face value by US Treasuries, or 103%
JS Government-backed or guaranteed agencies or go\ernment
;s. In addition, USNH investments may not exceed 5% of any instltu-
20% of any institution's net equity.

Cash equivalents n

and include repurch
Repurchase agreeni

investments are hie

Short-term investm

credit risk, and the

totaled S110,B32,0C

short-term investm

2021, respectively, f

•^present amounts invested to satisfy current operating liabilities
ase agreements, money market funds and other mutual funds,
ents are limited to overnight investments only. Short-term
hly liquid amounts held to support specific current liabilities,
ents are generally uninsured and uncollateralized against custodial
■lated mutual funds are not rated. Cash and cash equivalents

0 and $85,670,000 at June 30,2022 and 2021, respectively, and
ents totaled $ 144,266,000 and $ 130,477,000 at June 30,2022 and
ee Note 4 for additional information on fair value classifications.

Balance andTenns as ofJune 30,2022 Balance and Terms as of June 30,2021

Cash Equivalents and Weighted Cash Equivalents and Weighted
Cash Short-Term nvestments Total Average Cash Short-Term Investments Total Average

Levell Level 2 Maturity Level 1 Level 2 Maturity

Cash balance $59,296 s S  - S 59,296 42,166 $ $  - $ 42,166
Repurchase agreements -

- 12889 12,889 Less than 1 year
- -

4845 4,845 Less than 1 year
Money market funds - 38,647 - 38,647 Less than 1 year - 38,659 - 38,659 Less than 1 year

Subtotal cash and cash equivalents 59,296 38,647 12,889 110,832 42,166 38,659 4845 85670
Money market fonds - 33,054 - 33,054 Less than 1 year

-
38,237

-
38,237 Less than 1 year

Domestic equity
-

711
-

711 Less than 1 year - 795 - 795 Less than 1 year

Mutual Funds - 110,457 - 110,457 1-5 years - 91,407 - 91,407 1-5 years
Convertible note - 44 44 1-5 years - - 38 38 1-5 years

Subtotal short-term investments _ 144,222 44 144,266 - 130,439 38 130,477

Total cash, cash equivalents
and short-term investments $59,296 $182,869 $12,933 $255,098 42,166 $169,098 $4883 $216,147

University System of New Hampshire 1 21



3. Accounts, pledges, notes, and lease receivable
Accounts receivable at June 30 consisted of the following (S in thousands}:

2022 2021

Grants and contracts

Student and general

State ofNH capital projects

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Total accounts receivable, net

$33,154

9,867

2,112

(2,972)

$42,161

$22,983

7,530

(3,476)

$27,037

Pledges receivable at June 30 consisted entirely of unconditional non-endowment

promises to pay as follows ($ in thousands):

2022 2021

Pledges receivable $12,228 $10,919

Discounts and allowance for doubtful pledges (1,398) (1,239)

Total pledges receivable, net 10,830 9,680

Less: noncurrent portion (7,231) (7,131)

Current portion $3,599 $ 2.549

Notes receivable at June 30 consisted primarily of student loan funds as follows

(Sin thousands):

2022 2021

Perkins loans $7,353 $10,067

Other loans, restriaed and unrestriaed 1,622 1,348

Allowance for doubtful loans (1,438) (1,350)

Total notes recervable, net 7,537 10,065

Less: noncurrent portion (5.943) (8,323)

Current portion $1,594 $ 1,742

Lease receivable at June 30 consisted primarily of long-term leases as follows
(Sin thousands):

2022 2021

Long-term lease receivable $7,406 $8,486

Accrued interest receivable 69 87

Total lease receivable, net 7.475 8,573

Less: noncurrent portion (6,403) (7,406)

Current portion $1,072 $ 1,167

See Note 9 for additional information on leases.
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4. Investments

USNH's Investment

and required ratings

intended to mirlgatt
maximizing total ret

Illiquid investments

Credit risk is mitigat
investment manage'
underlying investme
portfolio assets may
manager is retained

to 20% of total portf(j)li
limited within the pc

limited to 20% of totfel

will be reviewed by

decide the approprii
with the concentrate

the endowment poc

mentsweredenomi

[jiolicy and guidelines specify permitted instruments, duration
for pooled endowment funds, The policy and guidelines are
risk on investments individually and in the aggregate while
jrns and supporting intergenerational equity of spending levels,

l ire limited to 25% of the U5NH consolidated endowment pool.
Ed by due diligence in the selection and continuing review of
s as well as diversification of both investment managers and
nts. Except in unusual circumstances, no more than 15% oftotal

ae invested in any one actively managed strategy. If an investment
0 manage more than one strategy, that manager will be limited
io assets. Passively managed investment strategies will not be
rtfolio: however, any one manager of passive strategies will be
portfolio assets. Any manager positions exceeding these limits
Finance Committee for Investments and this committee will

ite course of acion to bring active manager exposures back in line
)n limit. Private global equity investments are limited to 25% of
with a policy range of 0% - 25%. No U5NH endowment Invest-

lated in foreign currencies as of June 30,2022 or June 30,2021.

fie

GASB Statement No 72, FairValue Measurement and Application, requires that USNH

categorize assets measured at fair value using a three-tiered hierarchy based on the
valuation methodol }gles employed. The hierarchy includes the following:

Level 1 — Value ba

assets that are acces'

Level2—Value

asset either direaly

Level3—Value ba

or

Pooled endowment:

Campuses

UNH Foundation

KeeneEndowmen:

Life income and an

Funds held intrust

Total

ed on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
ible at the measurement date

ed on inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for an
indirealy;and

■ed on unobservable Inputs for an asset

In determining fair V3lue of investment assets, USNH utilizes valuation techniques that
maximize the use of observable Inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs
to the extent possib e. As a practical expedient to estimate the fair value of USNH's
interests, certain investments In commingled funds and limited partnerships are
reported at the net j sset value (NAV) determined by the respective fund managers,
without adjustment when assessed as reasonable by USNH, unless It is probable
that all or a portion of the Investment will be sold for an amount different from NAV.
Because these Inves ments are not readily marketable, their estimated fair values may
differ from the values that would have been assigned had a ready market for such
investments existed, and such differences could be material. As ofJune 30,2022, and
2021, USNH had no alans or intentions to sell such Investments at amounts different
from NAV, Investmei its reported at NAV as a practical expedient are not categorized in
thefalrvaluehlerardiy.

The endowment and similar investment holdings of the campuses and affiliated enti
ties as of June 30,2C|22 and 2021, respeaively, are summarized below (5 in thousands):

Campuses Affiliated Entities

2022 2021 2022 2021

$556,834 $662,606 $

Assodaticn

nuity funds 85
17,136

-  $
265,737 296,533
16,838 1 7,022

5,183 5,263
19,725

$574,055 $682,429 $287,758 $318,818



The majority of USNH's investments are units of institutional commingled funds and limited partnerships inves'
Of real estate strategies, Hedge strategies involve funds whose managers have the authority to invest in various
and short. Funds with hedge strategies generally hold securities or other financial instruments for which a readi'
swaps, currency hedges and other instruments which are valued by the investment manager,To the extent qu
not available, other methodologies maximizing obsen/able inputs would be used for the valuation, such as dis
operating income, replacement costs, or sales contraas and recent sales comparable in the market. Private eq
security strategies. Real asset funds generally hold Interests in private real estate. Fixed income securities had m
respectively, and carried ratings ranging from AM to Baa3 as ofJune 30,2022 and 2021. The mutual fund invei

:e in equity, fixed Income, hedge, natural resources, private equity,
asset classes at their discretion, including the ability to invest long
market exists and may include stocks, bonds, put or call options,

Dted prices exist the manager would use those; when these are
ounted cash flow analysis, capitalization of current or stabilized net

11, ity funds employ buyout, growth, venture capital, and distressed
i^turitlesupto 10 years and 11 yearsatJune30,2022 and 2021,
ments held in the endowment pools are not rated.

d

The following table summarizes the fair value of USNH's investments by type ordered alphabetically in thousands):

Balances as of June 30,2022 Balances as of June 30,2021

Investments Gassified Investments Investments Gassified Investments
in FairValue Hierarchy Measured in FairValue Hierarchy Measured

Levell Level2 Level3 at NAV Total Levell Ljevel2 levels at NAV Total

Endowment and similar investments •- campuses

Domestic equity S 91,066 S  - S  - $ 78,237 $169,303 $137388 $  - $  - $105,340 $243,028
Global equity -

-
- 7,923 7,923 -

- - 10,851 10,851
Global fixed income 47,158 - - - 47,158 62,876 - _

_ 62,876
Hedge funds:

Distressed/Restruauring - -
- 19,669 19,669 - -

- 21,319 21,319
Equity Hedge -

-

- 32,954 32,954 - - - 43,887 43,887
Event-Driven - -

- 68,860 68,860 -
- - 70,436 70,436

Fund of Funds - -

- 786 786 -

- - 2,009 2,009
Inflation hedging assets 9327 -

- 10,780 20,107 12,784 -
- 12,671 25,455

International equity 13,030 -
- 61,798 74,828 23,994 -

- 62,684 86,678
Money market 8,203 - -

- 8,203 27,188 - - - 27,188

Prhgte equity & non-marketable real assets -
- - 107,127 107,127 -

-

- 68,977 68,977

Trust funds - 17,137 - - 17,137 - 19,725 - - 19,725

Total endowment and similar

investments - campuses $168,784 $17,137 $  - $388,134 $574,055 S264330 $19,725 S  - 5398,174 $682,429

Endowment and similar Investments - affiliated entitles

Domestic equity S 17,806 s  - $  - S 51,190 $68,996 $ 19315 $  - $  - $ 59,346 $ 79,161
Global equity 566 - - 43,620 44,186 569 - - 26,760 27,329

Global fixed income 16,702 9,025 4,350 - 30,077 16,771 3,017 4,292 - 24,080
Hedge funds:

Distressed/Restruauring - - - 28,499 28,499 -
-

- 39,918 39,918

Diversified -

- - 6,592 6,592 - - - 7,251 7,251

Equity Hedge - - 13,576 13,576 - -
- 30,549 30,549

Inflation hedging assets 13,65,'
- -

- 13,667 4311 6,313 -
- 10,624

International equity 12,814 -
- 16,275 29,089 9325 - - 44,043 53,868

Money market 9,962 - - - 9,%2 12399 -

- 12,399

FVi'vate equity & ncn-marketabe real assets - - - 43,114 43,114 - - - 33,639 33,639

Total endowment and similar

Investments - affiliated entities $ 71317 $ 9,025 $4,350 $202,866 $287,758 $ 63,690 $ 9,330 $4,292 $241,506 $ 318,818

Total endowment and similar Investments $240301 $26,162 $4,350 $591,000 $861313 $328,220 $ 29,055 $4,292 $639,680 $1,001,247

As of June 30,2022, USNH had no funds in lock-up. As of June 30,2022, UNHF had a one year lock-up period fo
classified as illiquid have no ability to be redeemed at this time. For USNH, of the 39 funds classified as illiquid, n
within the next year; twenty-three are expeaed to start liquidation in 2 to 15 years, and six currently have no ex
and are expected to be liquidated over the next one to 12 years.

one of its funds. Fixed income, private equity and real estate funds
ine are currently in liquidation; one is expected to start liquidation
aeaed liquidation dates. For UNHF, 21 funds are classified as illiquid

As of June 30,2022 and 2021, USNH had one outstanding Investment liquidation request which has been limf
these investments at June 30,2022 and 2021 were $71,000 and $50,000, respectively. It is uncertain when, or if

it̂ d by the respeaive fund managers. USNH's estimated fair values of
he funds will be fully collected at the NAV recorded.

Unfunded commitments with various private equity and similar alternative investment funds totaled $48,012,01
compares to $42,366,000 and S17,901,000, respeaively, at June 30,2021.

)0 for USNH and $27,429,000 for UNHF at June 30,2022.This

University System of New Hampshire I 23



Investment liquidity for the past two years is aggregated below based on redemption terms or availability fS in

Liquidity Terms as of June 30,2022

thousands):

Daily Monthly Quarterly Seml-Annual A inual illiquid Total
Redemption
Notice Period

Endowment and similar Investments - campuses

Money market
Global fixed income

International equity
Inflation hedging assets
Domestic equity
Global equity
Hedge funds:

Equity Hedge
Event-Driven

Distressed/Restructuring
Fund of Funds

Private equity & non-marketable real assets
Funds held in trust

Total endowment and similar

investments - campuses

$ 8,203
47,158
22,678
9327

91,066

S  -

52,150
10,780

$ S

78,237

7,923

32,954
28,482 40,378

,669

$178,432

786

107,127
17,137

$  8,203
47,158

74,828
20,107

169,303
7,923

32,954

68,860
19,669

786

107,127
17,137

$62,930 $147,596 $40,378 $l'i,669 $125,050 $574,055

Daily
Daily

1-lOdays
1-15 days
1-60 days
30 days

30-60 days
60-90 days
90 days
illiquid
Illiquid
illiquid

Endowment and similar investments - affiliated entities

Money market $ 9,962
Inflation hedging assets 13,667
Global fixed income 25,727
Global equity 12,883
Domestic equity 23,429
International equity 26,433
Hedge funds;

Equity Hedge
Diversified

Distressed/Restructuring
Private equity & non-marketable real assets ^
Total endowment and similar
investments-affiliated entities $112,101

S

16,407
6,119

$22,526

TotzJ endowment and similar investments $290,533 $85.456

14,896
39,448
2,656

13,576

6,843

$ 77,419

$225,015

4,429
11,606

$16,035

556,413

1,765

,163
1|),050

$T-,978

S3' -,647

$  - $ 9,962 Daily
- 13,667 Daily

1585 30,077 Daily, illiquid
- 44,186 1-30 days
- 68,996 1-60 days
- 29,089 1-90 days

- 13,576 30-90 days
- 6,592 60 days
- 28,499 60-90 days

43,114 43,114 illiiquid

$44,699 5287,758

$169,749 $861313

Liquidity Terms as of June 30,2021

Redemption
Daily Monthly Quarterly Semi-Annual Arinual illiquid Total Notice Period

Endowment and similar investments - campuses

Money market $ 27,188 S  - S  - S  - 5 - 5 $ 27,188 Daily
Global fixed income 62,876 - - - - - 62,876 Daily
International equity 23,994 62,684 -

- - - 86,678 l-lOdays
Inflation hedging assets 12,784 12,671 - -

- - 25,455 1 -15 days
Domestic equity 137688 - 105,340 -

-

- 243,028 1-60 days
Global equity -

- 10,851 - -

- 10,851 30 days
Hedge funds:

Equity Hedge - -
43,541 - 346 - 43,887 60 days

Event-Driven -

- 29,286 41,150 -
- 70,436 60-90 days

Distressed/Restructuring -
-

-
- 2 ,319 - 21,319 90 days

Fund of Funds -
-

-
- - 2,009 2,009 illiquid

Private equity & non-marketable real assets - -
-

-

- 68,977 68,977 illiquid
Funds held in trust -

-

- - - 19,725 19,725 illiquid
Total endowment and similar
investments - campuses 5264330 $ 75,355 S189018 $41,150 52 ,665 S 90,711 $ 682,429

Endowment and similar Investments - affiliated entities

Money market $ 12,399
Inflation hedging assets 10,624
Global fixed income 19,789
Global equity 7,042
Domestic equity 27,227
International equity 27,988
Hedge funds:

Equity Hedge
□versified
Distressed/Restructuring

Privateequity&non-marketablerealassets
Total endowment and similar
investments-affiliated entities $105,069

Total erKlowment and sknilar investments $369699

$

7,812
22381

$ 30,193

$105,548

20,287
44,122

3,499

30,549

9,331

$107,788

$296305

4,638
12,464

$17,102

■  ',228

■613
;,123

$21,964

$58,252 $4 >629

$ $  12,399 Daily
- 10,624 Daily

63 24,080 Daily, illiquid
- 27,329 1-30 days
- 79,161 1-60 days
- 53,868 1-90 days

_ 30,549 30-90 days
- 7,251 60 days
- 39,918 60-90 days

33,639 33,639 illiiquid

5 33,702 $318,818

$124,413 $1,001247
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5. Property and equipment
Property and equipment aaivity for the years ended June 30,2022 and 2021 is summarized as follows f5 in rhou^nds):

2021 2022

Balance Retirements Balance Retirements BaiarKe

June 30,2020 Additions & Changes JUne 30,2021 Additions & Changes June 30,2022

Nondepreciable property and equipment

Land S  17,962 $  - S  (2,706) S 15,256 S  29 $ $  15.285

Construaion in progress, net 66,152 43,208 (49,096) 60,264 44,358 (12,626) 91,996

Total nond^)reclable property and equipment 84,114 43,208 (51,802) 75520 44,387 (12,626) 107,281

Depreciable property and equipment

Buildings and improvements 1,858,870 49,096 (7,721) ,900,245 12,597 (13,628) 1,899,214

Equipment 152,326 10,259 (1,929) 160,656 8,063 (5,964) 162,755

Intangible right to use assets - real estate 44,065 - - 44,065 -

- 44,065

Intangible right to use assets - equipment 776 789 - 1,565 -

- 1,565

Total nondepreciable property and equipment 2,056,037 60,144 (9,650) ,106,531 20,660 (19,592) 2,107,599

Total property and equipment 2,140,151 103,352 (61,452) ,182,051 65,047 (32,218) 2,214,880

Less; accumulated depreciation/amortization (975,385) (72,406) 9,265 (,038526) (71,556) 14,318 (1,095,764)

Property and equipment, net $1,164,766 $30,946 5(52,187) $ ,143525 $ (6,509) 5(17,900) 5 1,119,116

Contraaua! obligations for major construction projects totaled approximately $64,753,000 and $66,042,000 at
information on intangible right to use assets.

6. Accrued employee benefits
Accrued employee beneft obligations at June 30 are summarized below (Sin thousands):

une 30,2022 and 2021, respectively. See Note 9 for additional

2021 2022

Payments to/ Expenses 'aymentsto/ Expenses
Balance on Behalfof &Other Balance on Behalf of & Other Balance Cunent

June 30,2020 Partidpants Changes June 30,2021 Participants Changes June 30,2022 Portion

Additional retirement contribution 5 2,059 S  (865) 5  632 5  1,826 $  (42) S (776) 5  1,008 S  42

Standard employee separation Incentives 2,104 (896) 526 1,734 (1,892) 1,375 1,217 1,108

Enhanced retirement and separation programs (15,789) 56,086 40297 (32,245) 5,279 13331 6386

Long-term disability 2,032 (429) (122) 1,481 (313) (96) 1,072 312

Workers'compensation 2,871 (878) 850 2,843 (928) 764 2,679 928

Compensated absences 20557 (5,102) 6,563 22,318 (4,012) 2,864 21,170 2,450

Other benefits 1,217 - (328) 889 (290) 57 656 455

Total acaued employee benefits $31,140 $(23,959) 564,207 571,388 $(39,722) $9,467 $41,133 $11,881

The Addltiotial Retirement Contribution program is a single employer plan
administered by USNH and offered to eligible employees hired between July 1, 1994
and June 30,2011. Under this plan, staff meeting certain voluntary defined benefit
plan contribution levels receive an additional l%oftheir salary contributed to their
defined contribution retirement plan (see below) by USNH in lieu of postretirement
medical benefits. Employees meeting certain service guidelines prior to July 1,1994
are also eligible for a guaranteed minimum employer retirement contribution of
$ 10,000 plus an additional $ 1,000 for each year of service in excess of 20 years less 1 %
of the participant's salary account. There were 149 and 155 active employees meeting
the requirements for the guaranteed minimum employer contribution as of June 30,
2022 and 2021, respectively.

The calculations for the Additional Retirement Contribution program are based on the
benefits provided by the program at the time of the last biennial actuarial valuation,
December 31,2021, and were developed using the Entry Age Normal Actuarial Cost

Method. The discount rate used In determining the accrued liabilities was 2.06% and
2.12% for 2022 and 2021, respealvely, based on Bond Buyer 20-Bond General
Obligation Index rate as of the measurement date. Inflation rates of 2.5% and salary
increase rates of 3% were used to determine the liability along with the PubG.H-2010
General Employee Headcount-weighted Mortality Table projeaed generationally with
Scale MP-2021, USNH accrued $ 1,008,000 and $ 1,826,000 at June 30,2022 and 2021,

respeaively, for the related obligations. If the discount rate were to increase by 1 %, the
total liability at June 30,2022 would be $965,000. Similarly, if the discount rate were

to decrease by 1 % the total liability at June 30,2022 would be $1,053,000. The
Additional Retirement Contribution program expense was ($150,000) and
($102,000) for fiscal years 2022 and 2021, respectively.

ait

USNH had deslgna:
butlon obligations
through a trust.Th^
employees hired
mayelea to partic
tered by others. Re

defined contributid)
participants. USNH

and $27,291,000 In

members totaled S

ed cash assets to fully fund the Additional Retirement Contrl-
at June 30,2022 and 2021 .These assets are not administrated

Additional Retirement Contribution program is not available to
er June 30,2011, Eligible employees hired after June 30,2011
pate in USNH's defined contribution retirement plans adminis-
irement contributions by USNH for employees enrolled in the
n plans range from 4% to 10% of eligible salaries for enrolled
additions to the defined contribution plans totaled $25,049,000
2022 and 2021, respectively. Retirement contributions by plan
26,815,000and $29,289,000 In 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Early retirement an

various faculty and
well as medical, ed'

with these incentiv

The liability balanc^'
obligations for 20
2023 through 2025

J employee separation Incentive programs were provided to
staff during 2022 and 2021. Such incentives include stipends, as
jcational, and other termination benefits. The future cost associated
? options is accrued as of the date of acceptance into the program,
■s of $ 1,217,000 and $ 1,734,000 at June 30,2022 and 2021 represent

chd 28 participants, respectively, which will be remitted in fiscal years
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USNH Board ofTrustees approved voluntary separation incentive programs for
reduction offeree for 2021. Such incentives include salary continuation, year of
service stipends, and medical benefits. As of June 30,2021, the liability balance for
these programs was $40,297,000. The liability balance of S13331,000 at June 30,
2022, represents obligations for 262 participants, which will be remitted in fiscal years
2023 through 2027.

USNH sponsors other benefit programs for its employees, including long-term
disability, workers'compensation, and compensated absences. Long-term disability
payments are provided through an independent insurer.The associated medical
benefits are accrued and paid by USNH until age 65, at which point the
postretirement medical plan takes over, if applicable. Workers'compensation
accruals include amounts for medical costs and annual stipends. A small number
of chronic workers'compensation cases will require stipends and regular employee
medical benefits for life. Coverage for such claims is provided through an indepen
dent insurer. USNH also accrues amounts for compensated absences as earned. These
accrued balances at June 30 represent vacation and earned time amounts payable to
employees upon termination of employment.

USNH is self-insured for a portion of certain risks, including workers'compensation,
employee long-term disability, and certain student health insurance claims. Most

employee and retiree medical and dental coverage provided by USNH is also self-
insured. The costs of self-insured medical and dental claims and administrative fees

totaled $59,662,000 and $66,657,000 for fiscal year 2022 and 2021, respectively. These
amounts include $3,379,000 and $3,811,000 for estimated claims incurred but not

reported as of June 30,2022 and 2021, respectively.

In conjunction with the primary medical plan offering for active employees, USNH
purchases stop-loss coverage which limits the USNH cost of claims to $600,000 per
participant in most cases. The liabilities recorded in the financial statements for all
USNH self-insured programs are developed by third party claim administrators and
based on historical claims data. Management reviewed the calculations for reason
ableness and believes the liabilities are sufficient to cover the aaual claims incurred.

In addition to the benefits accruals included above, USNH created and fully funded
a trust to hold assets set aside for its Operating Staff Retirement Plan on June 29,
2017. The related asset and liability values are not included in the financial state
ments. The related investment balances as of June 30,2022 and 2021 are summarized

(Sin thousands):

Trust Investment Components 2022 2021

Cash and equivalents $  136 S 367

Fixed income 1,565 2,727

Equities 3,537 3,365

Real assets 68 90

Total Including accrued iixome $5,306 $6,549

The plan has been closed to new participants since 1987. At June 30,2022 there
were approximately 152 current annuitants and 12 participants with deferred
benefits, all fully vested. This compares to 149 current annuitants and 27
participants with deferred benefits as of June 30,2021. The determination of total
pension liabilities for this program was based on actuarial calculations completed
by the plan trustee as of June 30,2022 and 2021, The calculations were developed
using the Entry Age Normal Aauarial Cost Method and the PubG-201 OTotal
Dataset with MP- 2021 mortality tables. The 2021 valuation used Scale MP-2020.
The discount rate used was 5.5% in both years based on the long-term expected

rate of return on the related investments. The plan fiduciary net position was
$5306,000 as of June 30,2022 and $6,549,000 as of June 30,2021 which resulted

in the recording of a net pension asset of $714,000 and S1,557,000 for fiscal years
2022 and 2021, respectively. The actuarially determined liability for the program

was $4,593,000 as cf June 30,2022 and $4,992,000 as of June 30,2021.lfthe
discount rate were :o increase by 1%, the net pension asset at June 30,2022 would
be $1,018,000, Simi arly, if the discount rate were to decrease by 1 %, the net
pension asset at Ju le 30,2022 would be $367,000. The plan expense was
($233,000) and ($2i 2,000) for fiscal years 2022 and 2021, respeaively.

7.Postretirem

The primary define[j
The first offering kn
for full-time status

employees after th|t
were 899 and 942
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and 107 active emp

eventually be elig
limited medicai co\
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eht medical benefits
benefit postretirement medical plan has two components,

mwn as the Medicare Complementary Plan (MCP), was optional
Employees hired before July 1,1994 and not offered to new

date. At December 31,2021 and 2020, respectively, there
fjarmer employees receiving benefits under this program along
ependents. As of December 31,2021 and 2020, there were 67

loyees, respeaively, who along with their dependents, may
to receive benefits under this program. The MCP provides

erage for the remaining life of the participants.There are no
in the plan, but retirees must pay a portion of the aaual costs

tie
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reached age 62, co
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be eligible for the pfe
medical rates during
tively, there were 32
their dependents

3,248 and 3,415acti

be eligible to receiv^
medical plan holds
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single-employer pi
when due.

July 1,1994 or later are eligible for the current offering which
i\trage only for retirees aged 62-65. Retired employees must have
r ipleted at least 10 years of benefits eligible service, participated
lent plans during their last 10 years of benefits-eligible service,
JSNH's active medical plan at the time of retirement in order to
n. Retirees contribute to the plan at then-current employee
the bridge period, As of December 31,2021 and 2020, respec-
and 97 retirees receiving benefits under this program along with
of December 31,2021 and 2020, respectively, there were also

ve employees who, along with their dependents, may eventually
benefits under this program. The primary postretirement

iioassets.Together, the above offerings constitute the primary
cal plan.This is an Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB)

an and funded on a pay-as-you-go basis with benefits paid

A;

Third-party actuarie
and annual expense
Such calculations in

healthcare cost trend
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The components o
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Benefit payments
Change of benefit

Differences betwi
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Net change
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are used to determine the postretirement benefit obligation
amounts. Actuarial calculations reflea a long-term perspeaive.
/olve estimates and, by definition, are subject to revision.The
and discount rate assumptions have a significant effect on the

postretirement medical liability as of June 30,2022 and 2021
-housands):

Postreb'rement idical Plan Uabllity

erms

n expeaed and

tions

nningofyear
year

2022 2021

S 1,132 $ 1,143

1,792 2,444

(5,338) (4,795)

- (9,533)

363 (999)

(6,126) 7,336

(8,177) (4,404)

86,037 90,441

$77,860 $86,037

$ 7,201 $ 5342



The total postretirement benefit obligation is measured at December 31,2021 for the June 30,2022 financial
December 31,2021, developed using the Entry Age Normal Actuarial Cost Method and the PubT.H-2010 mort.
performed for the December 31,2020 measurement date based on the biennial actuarial valuation to calculate
statements using the Entry Age Normal Cost Method and the PublH- 201 OTeacher Employee Headcount
MP-2019. For measurement purposes the 2022 and 2021 Initial rate of increase in the cost of healthcare service^
0.25%each year thereafter until reaching an ultimate rate of 45% per year. The initial increase In the cost of pre
reduced by 0.50% each year thereafter until reaching an ultimate rate of 45% per year. Salary increases of 3.0%
A single discount rate of 2,06% and 2.12% was used based on the Bond Buyer 20-Bond General Obligation indc
actuarially determined postretirement medical expense for the plan for the years ended June 30,2022 and 2021

,1 atements based on the last biennial actuarial valuation,

^lity tables with Scale MP-2021, A rollforward calculation was
postretirement benefit obligation for the June 30,2021 financial
weighted Mortality Table projected generationally with Scale
was assumed to be 8.0% and 6.5% for participants, reduced by

criptions was assumed to be 9,0% for 2022 and 8.5% for 2021,
vere included in the calculations for fiscal year 2022 and 2021.
■X rate as of December 31,2021 and 2020, respeaively.The

were S2,971,000 and ($5,108,000), respectively.

The following presents the sensitivity of the postretirement medical plan liability to changes in the discount r; te and healthcare cost trend rates (Sin thousands):

OPEBTiabilityasof
December 31,2021

OPEB liability as of
Deamber31,2020

Sen^rvity to change in discount rate
l%increase Currentrate l%decrease

$70,976 $77,860 $85,879
1%

Seruitivity to change in healdi care costs
increase Currentrate l%deaease
■85,401 $77860 $71,365

578,204 $86,037 $95,242 : .95556 $86,037 $77,926

The benefit payments subsequent to the measurement date for the years ended June 30,2022 and 2021 were
$102,000 as of June 30,2021 for potential obligations related to postretirement care of certain USNH police per
Board ofTrustees holds the authority to change these benefit plans at any time. Further information on the Addi
and Postretirement Medical Plan can be found in the Required Supplemental Information on page 34 of the pL

$4,277,000 and $2,965,000, respectively. USNH also accrued
onnet, and had no such obligation as of June 30,2022. The USNH
tional Retirement Contribution, Operating Staff Retirement Plan,

bllcation.

8. Long-term debt
USNH long-term debt activity, exclusive of deferred losses or gains on refunding, for the years ended June 30,2022 and 2021 is summarized below (5/nrhousandsj:

2021 2022

Balance
June 30,2020

Additions
& Other Balance
Changes Retirements June30,2021

Additions
& Other Balana

Changes Retirements June30,2022
Curratt
Portion

NHHEFA bonds
Series 2005A $ 44,400 S- $ (2,100) S 42,300 S- S (2,000) S 40,300 $ 2,300
Series 20056 59,600 - (4,905) 54,695 - (5,075) 49,620 5,250
Series 2011A 6,000 -

- 6,000 - (6,000) - -

Series 201 IB 28,150 - (2,210) 25,940 - (2,310) 23,630 2,425
Series 2012 3,300 - (3,300) -

- -
- -

Series 2014 11,440 - (2200) 9,240 - (2,240) 7,000 2285
Series 2015 107875 - (2,990) 104,685 - (3,115) 101,570 3,280
Series 2016 47,310 - (2,640) 44,570 - (2,780) 41,890 2,920
Series 2017A 52,045 - (1,850) 50,195 - (1,940) 48,255 2,040
Series 2017B 45,970 - (1,990) 43,980 - (2,030) 41,950 2,075

Unamortized discounts/premiums, net 26,466 - (1,915) 24,551 (2,285) 22,266 1878
Financed purchases payaUe 6,637 - (1,215) 5,422 - (1,270) 4,152 1,327
Total bonds and leases $438,993 $2 5(27,315) $411,678 iz $(31,045) $380,633 $25,780

to

New Hampshire Health and Education Fadlltles Authority (NHHEFA) Bonds
NHHEFA is a public body corporate and an agency of the State of New Hampshire whose primary purpose is
care Institutions in the construction and financing (or refinancing) of related facilities. NHHEFA achieves this pi
USNH bonds have been issued through NHHEFA. None of USNH's NHHEFA bonds provide for a lien or mortgag
NHHEFA bonds to make payments from revenues received from certain housing, dining, student union, recret
by the bonds. The State is not liable for the payment of principal or interest on the NHHEFA bonds, nor Is the S
any form of taxation whatsoever or to make any appropriation for their payment. USNH Bond Indentures have
default by USNH the principal may be accelerated and become immediately due and payable, at par, with Int^
in compliance with all covenants specified in the NHHEFA bond, as well as lease agreements, the most restria
defined, of at least l.O to l.O.

assist New Hampshire not-for- profit educational and health
rpose primarily through the issuance of bonds. Since 1989 all
e on any property, USNH is obligated under the terms of the

tional, and other related revenue generating facilities financed
ate directly, Indirectly or contingently obligated to levy or pledge
a provision that in an event of default resulting from a payment
rest payable thereon to the accelerated payment date. USNH is
ve of which is maintenance of a debt-service coverage ratio, as
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USNH's bond portfolio at June 30,2022 consisted of fixed rate and variable rate issues.
The variable rate demand bonds (Series 2005A, 2005B, 2011B) are fully hedged via
interest rate swap agreements (see Note 10 below), with all three Issues supported
by standby bond purchase agreements as of June 30,2022 and 2021. The variable
interest rates for the Series 2005A and 2005B Bonds at June 30,2022 and 2021 were

0,63% and 0.02%, respectively.The 2011B Bonds variable interest rates at June 30,
2022 and 2021 were 0.60% and 0.01 %, respectively.

Maturity dates and interest terms of outstanding debt issues are summarized below:

NHHEFA Bonds Maturity Date Interest Terms and Rates

Series 2005A 7/1/2035 Variable with daily pricing
Series 2005B 7/1/2033 Variable with daily pricing
Series 201 IB 7/1/2033 Variable with daily pricing
Series 2014 7/1/2024 Fixed at 2.1%

Series 2015 7/1/2045 Fixed at 3.8%

Series 2016 7/1/2046 Fixed at 2.7%

Series 2017A 7/1/2037 Fixed at 3.1%

Series 2017B 7/1/2037 Rxed at 3.4%

from general obligarion bonds, which It issues from time to time. Debt
service is funded by the general fund of the State, which is in the custody of
the State Treasurer, 'he State is responsible for all repayments of these bonds in
accordance with bond indentures, USNH facilities are not pledged as collateral
for these bonds anc creditors have no recourse to USNH. Accordingly, the State's
debt obligation attributable to USNH's educationai and general facilities is not
reported as debt of J5NH. As construction expenditures are incurred by USNH on
state-funded educa ional and general facilities, amounts are billed to the State and
recorded as State oflNew Hampshire capital appropriations.

Maturityoflong-tem debt obligations
USNH long-term debt obligations are scheduled to mature as follows using the associated
fixed, estimated synthi ttic fixed, and expected variable rates in effect as ofJune 30,2022
over the remaining ter ms ofthe individual issuances (S in thousands):

Fiscal Year

Financed purchases

On April 30,2004, USNH entered into a financed purchase agreement in the amount
of $ 18,292,000 to finance a portion of the costs of equipment housed in UNH's utility
cogeneration facility.The related payments are due quarterly through June 2025,
including principal as well as interest at a fixed rate of 4.5%. The carrying value of the
related assets was $3,049,000 and $3,913,000 as of June 30,2022 and 2021, respectively,

State of NH general obligation bonds
The State, through acts of its legislature, provides funding for certain major plant fa
cilities on USNH campuses. The State obtains Its funds for these construction projects

2023

2024

2025

2026

2027

2028-2032

2033-2037

2038-2042

2043-2047

Plus: unamortized

discounts/premiurji
Total

I

Principal Interest Total

$ 23,902

24,598

25,675

S, net

19,585

96,391

93,535

31,060

24,635

22,266

$380,633

S 14,277

13,350

12381

11,472

10,676

42,063

21336

8,279

2357

$136391

$ 38,179

37,948

38,056

30,458

30,261

138,454

115,071

39,339

26,992

22266

$517,024

Other long-term obligations
In addition to the long-term debt presented above, postretlrement medical benefits liability in Note 7 and emplc^ment benefits liabilities in Note 6, USNH had the following
changes in other long-term obligations fS in thousands):

2021 2022

Balance

June 30,2020

Additions

&C)ther

Changes Retirements

Balanra

June 30,2021

Additions

&Other

Changes Retkements

Balance

June 30,2022
Current

Portion

Asset retirement and other obligations* $10,929 Si 1322 5 (267) $22,184 5 974 5 (8,463) $14,695 $ 8384

Refundable government advances 13,229 258 (2,772) 10,715 106 (3,147) 7,674
-

Long-term leases - real estate 44,065 - (1,924) 42,141 - (1,939) 40,202 2,095

Long-term leases - equipment 776

CO

(384) 1,181 - (660) 521 343

Total other long-term obligations $68,999 512369 5(5,347) 576,221 $1,080 5(14,209) 563,092 510322

"The current portion ofthese obligations is reported under accounts payable and accrued expenses.

See Note 9 for additional information on leases.

9. Leases
USNH adopted GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, for its June 30,2022 financial statements. Rscal year 2021 balance:
lessee for non-cancellable lease of equipment and real estate assets. A lease liability and an intangible right to use
term of the lease value of $50,000 or more is recognized. At the commencement of a lease, the lease liability is m
during the lease term. Subsequently, the lease liability is reduced by the principal portion of lease payments mad
amount ofthe lease liability, adjusted for lease payments made at or before the lease commencement date, plus
use asset is amortized on a straight-line basis over its useful life. USNH uses its estimated incremental borrowing r.
2022 and 2021.

and activities were restated to refiea this adoption. USNH is a
asset with initial. Individual undiscounted payments over the

f 'asured at the present value of payments expeaed to be made
;.The intangible right to use asset Is initially measured as the initial
certain initial direa costs. Subsequently, the Intangible right to

'.ite as the discount rate for leases which was 35% as of June 30,
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The table below represents the financial adjustment for the July 1,2020 GAS6 87 adoption; rollforward to June 3), 2021 as well as accounts and categories impacted in thousands)

Statement of Net Position

Origl lal Adjustment Restated

Lease receivable - current portion $ _ $  1.167 $  1,167
Lease receivable, net of current portion

- 7,406 7,406
Property and equipment, net 1,101,440 42,085 1,143,525
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (81,510} (133) (81,643)
Long-term leases - current portion

- (2,598) (2,598)
Long-term leases & SBiTAs, net of current portion

- (40,724) (40,724)
Deferred inflows (11 346) (8,186) (19,532)
Net position 1,658624 (983) 1,657,641

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

For Year Ended June 30,2021
Origirlal Adjustment Restated

Sales of auxiliary services S 162460 S  (4) $  162,456
Other operating revenue 26221 92 26,313
Supplies & services-all other (156347) 3,720 (152,627)
Depreciation/amortization (68953) (3,546) (72,499)
Interest expense, net (15 432) (1,543) (16,975)
Other nonoperating revenue (expense) 1 200 298 1,498
Decrease in net position (44412) (983) (45,395)

Statement of Cash Flows

For Year Ended June 30,2021
Origira! Adjustment Restated

Receipts from sales of auxiliary services $ 163582 $  (26) $  163,556
Receipts from grants, contracts and other operating revenues 170209 (273) 169,936

Payments to suppliers and subcontraaors (251 579) 3,720 (247,859)
Other noncapital activity 19160 298 19,458

Purchases of property, plant, equipment, and construction services (51 455) (788) (52,243)
Proceeds from issuance of debt, sale of property and lease aquisition 2706 788 3,494

Principal payments (25 404) (2,308) (27,712)

Interest expense (16 519) (1,411) (18,030)

Ending cash & equivalents 85570
- 85,670

Balance as of June 30,2021

The tables below represent the schedule of maturity for current Lessee and Lessor arrangements as of June 30,2(122 ($ in r/TousondsJ.

Lessee Maturity Schedule Lessor Matur ty Schedule

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total

2023 $ 2,438 S  1,399 5 3,837 2023 51,003 5 249 5  1,252

2024 2,362 1,312 3,674 2024 277 215 492

2025 2,021 1,236 3,257 2025 270 206 476

2026 2,111 1,162 3,273 2026 291 197 488

2027 1,973 1,091 3,064 2027 313 187 500

2028-2032 12,368 4,256 16,624 2028-2032 1,488 785 2,273

2033-2037 13,960 1,760 15,720 2033-2037 1,239 576 1,815

2038-2042 3,472 114 3,586 2038-2042 853 431 1,284

2043-2045 18 1 19 2043-2047 478 254 732

Total lessee 540,723 $12,331 $53,054 2048-2052 210 194 404

2053-2057 310 148 458

2058-2062 440 83 523

2063-2067 234 11 245

Total lessor 57,406 53,536 510,942
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10. Derivative instruments - interest rate swaps
USNH uses hedging derivatives to artificially fix interest rates on variable rate bonds outstanding. The terms and
2021 were as follows fS in rhojsands)

Effective
Payable Receivable Notional Amount Swap Fair \felue

Termination Fixed Swap Variable atJune30, at June 30,
Date Date Rate Swap Rate 2022 2021 2022 2021

Series 2005A swap Oaober 29,2008 July 1,2035 3.6% 67% LIBOR $ 40,300 S 42,300 S (4,771) $  (9,284)
Series 2005B swap August 1,2005 Julyl,2033 3.1% 63% LIBOR+0.29% 49,620 54,695 (3,033) (7,113)

Series 2011Bswap July 1,2011 July 1,2033 45% 67% LIBOR 23,630 25,940 (3,301) (5,883)

Total $ 13,550 $122,935 $(11,105) $(22,280)

fair value of swap contracts in place as of June 30,2022 and

Effective interest rates and other key terms of each derivative are described below:

Variable Interest Rates Paid and Received Inception-To-Oate

Counterpart/s
Most Recent

Interest Rate Paid by
USNH to

Bondholders as of

Interest Rate Receiv^ by
USNH from Swa 3

G)unterparties as of
Effective Interest
RateThrough

Credit Rating 6/30/2022 6/30/202T 6/30/2022 6/30 2021 6/30/2022

Series 2005A swap Aa2/AA- 0.6% 0.0% 0.7% 01% 4.0%

Series 20056 swap A]/A+ 0.6% 0.0% 1.0% 0i% 3.2%

Series 2011B swap A1/BBB+ 0.6% 0.0% 0.7% 01% 4.9%

AIMn

Syntf^kally
Fbced Interest

Rate

4,1%

35%

USNH utilizes interest rate swap agreements with counterparties to effectively convert
its variable rate debt to fixed rates.The swaps'fair values and changes therein are
recognized in USNH's financial statements. Differences between the fixed and variable
rates in effect at each interest due date are settled net under each swap, increasing
or decreasing interest expense.The fair value of the swap instruments is determined
using option pricing models that consider interest rates and other market factors,

the credit risks of the paales to the agreements, and the estimated benefit or cost to
the USNH to cancel the agreements as ofthe reporting dates. Interest rate volatility,
remaining outstanding principal, and time to maturity will affea the swaps'fair values
at subsequent reporting dates.The values were estimated using the zero-coupon
discounting method. This method calculates the future payments required by the
swap, assuming the current forward rates implied by the yield curve are the market's
best estimate of future spot interest rates. These payments are then discounted using
the spot rates implied by the current yield curve for a hypothetical zero-coupon rate
bond due on the date of each future net settlement payment. Because the swap fair

values are based predominantly on observable inputs corroborated by market data,
they are classified in Level 2 ofthe GASB fair value hierarchy, USNH Intends to hold all
swap contracts to maturity.

These derivative instruments meet the criteria established by GASB Statement No. 53
for effective hedges as of June 30,2022 and 2021 and, therefore, their accumulated
changes in fair value are reflected as deferrals on the Statements of Net Position (see
Note 1 l).The notional amount of each swap is tied to the outstanding balance ofthe
related bonds throughout the life ofthe swap. Under the terms of each swap, USNH
makes fixed rate interest payments to the counterparty and receives a variable rate
payment from the counterparty. USNH makes variable rate payments to bondholders
on the related bonds. None ofthe derivatives require collateralization by USNH at any
level of negative fair value.

Risk disclosure

Counterparty risk -This is the risk that the counterparty will fail to perform under
the terms of the swt p agreement. As of June 30,2022, USNH was exposed to no
counterparty credit isk relative to its swaps as all swap market values were negative.
The swaps require c }llaterallzation of any positive fair value ofthe swap should the
counterparty's credi: rating fe ll below thresholds Identified in the swap contracts.
USNH mitigates counterparty risk by spreading the swap exposure among various
counterparties, by monitoring bond ratings continuously, and by requiring
collateralization In o vtain circumstances.

heBasis risk-This ist.

the swap counterpa

underlying variable
the magnitude and
historical experience

agreements to appro:

USNH manages basis

received on each tra

varying swap terms

risk of a mismatch between the variable rate received from

hy and the variable rate paid by USNH to bondholders on the
ate debt. The effective rate on the debt will vary depending on
juration of any basis risk shortfall or surplus. Based on current and
USNH's financial advisors expea payments received under the
iximatethe related bond payments over the life ofthe swaps,
risk by closely monitoring daily and monthly rates paid and

nsaaion, by diversifying bond remarketing agents, and by
e.g., 67% of LIBOR vs. 63% of LIBOR + 29 bps}.

-This

eiti

Termination risk

any of several event;
for USNH or the swa

or bankruptcy by

indenture. Under thi

swap atthefelrvalu^
counterparty may oi

manages terminatio

strategic indicator ta

values and counter

5 the risk that the swaps could be terminated as a result of
which may include rating downgrades below specified levels

a counterparty: covenant violation; swap payment default
er party; or default events under a bond resolution or trust
terms ofeach agreement, USNH has the option to terminate a
at any time by providing notice to the counterparty, while the

I ily terminate the swap upon certain termination events. USNH
1 risk by adhering to bond covenant requirements, employing

gets to maintain financial strength, monitoring swap market
darty credit ratings, and diversifying swap counterparties.
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Swap cash flows
Aaual interest payments on the swaps vary as market rates vary.

The table below shows estimated annual future cash flows ofthe derivative instruments

ifinterest rates remain unchanged from June 30,2022 frirough the end ofeach swap
contraa fS in thousands):

Fiscal Year

Notional

Bonds

Amortization

Estimated

Interest

Received

Estimated

Interest and

Fees Paid

Estimated

Swap Net
Outflows

2023 S  9,975 $ (846) $ 4,347 $ 3,501

2024 I0,J70 (761) 3,921 3,160

2025 10,665 (671) 3,475 2,804

2026 7,250 (611) 3,171 2,560

2027 7,375 (551) 2,862 2,311

2028-2032 41,875 (1,746) 9,168 7,422

2033-2036 26,240 (207) 1,167 960

Total $113,550 $(5,393) $28,111 $22,718

2022 2021

Deferred outflows of resources

Accumulated decrease in feir value ofhedging derivatives $11,105 $22,280

Accounting loss on debt refinancing 5,523 6,585

Changes of assumptions:
Operating Staff Retirement Plan 4 29

Postretlrement Medical Plan 9,834 11,891

Additional Retirement Contribution Program 57 80

Net difference between projeaed and actual earnings:
Operating Staff Retirement Plan 961 124

Difference between expected and aaual experience:
Postretirement Medical Plan 814 616

Benefit payments subsequent to the measurement date:
Postretirement Medical Plan 4,276 2,965

Additional Retirement Contribution Program 3 675

Asset retirement obligations 1,125 1,218

Total Deferred outflows of resources $33,702 $46,463

Deferred Inflows of resources

Accounting gain on debt refinancing S  50 $  100

Annuities unconditional remainder interest 1,655 2,161

Changes of assumptions:
Operating Staff Retirement Plan - 15

Postretirement Medical Plan 10,438 6,192

Additional Retirement Contribution Program 15 23

Net difference between projeaed and aaual earnings;
Operating Staff Retirement Plan 516 697

Difference between expeaed and aaual experience:
Operating Staff Retirement Plan 67 136

Postretirement Medical Plan 1,437 1,734

Additional Retirement Contribution Program 226 288

Deferred inflows - leases 7,501 8,186

Total Deferred it^ows of resources $21,905 $19,532

The accumulated decrease In fairvalue of hedging derivatives is recorded tooffeet the
value of USNH's inte est-rate swap liabilities which qualify for treatment as an effeaive
hedge based on his oric interest flows. USNH does not currently expea to terminate
any ofthe swap agrcements.The accounting gain on debt refinancing relates to the
Series 2012 and 2013 bond issuances while the accounting loss on debt refinancing
relates to the Series .1005B, 2011B, 2015 and 2017A bond issuances.These costs will be

amortized as a comi ranent of Interest expense over the remaining terms ofthe new
debt. See Note 9 for [additional information on leases.

Amounts reported ds deferred outflows of resources related to benefit payments sub
sequent to the mea: urement date will be recognized as a reduction ofthe respective
benefit liability in the year ended June 30 2023. Other amounts reported as deferred
outflows and inflow; of resources which are related to retirement programs will be
recognized as a corr ponent of pension and OPEB expense over the next seven years
as summarized belo /v {$ In thousands):

11. Deferred inflows and outflows of resources
The components of Deferred Inflows and Outflows of Resources as of June 30,2022
and 2021 were as follows ($ in thousands):

Rscal

Year

Operating
Staff

Retirement

Plan

Additional

Retirement

Contribution

Program

Post-

retirement

Medical

Plan

2023 $ 25 S (69) 5  47

2024 83 (58) 47

2025 53 (25) 47

2026 220 (32) 47

2027
-

- (411)

2028 - (775)

2029 - - (229)

Total $381 5(184) $(1,227)

12. Pass-throu<|h grants
USNH distributed $ 41,461,000 and $146,394,000 of student loans through the
US Department of Education Federal Direct Lending program during 2022
and 2021, respectively.These distributions and related funding sources are not

included as expenses and revenues, or cash disbursements and cash receipts, in
the accompanying inancial statements. The Statements of Net Position include
receivables of$271,)00 and $103,000 as of June 30,2022 and 2021, respectively,
for direct loans disbjursed in excess of US Department of Education receipts.
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13. Endowment return used for operations
The objective of the annual spending formula for endowment return used for
operations is to provide sustainable continued future support for ongoing programs
at current levels assuming moderate inflation.To the extent that endowment yield is
insufficient in any one year to meet the required spending distribution, accumulated
net gains are utilized to fund the distribution. For the USNh pool, the distribution rate
is established annually by the USNH Board oflrustees. Starting in fiscal year 2019, the
USNH pool calculated the distribution as a percentage of the average market value
per unit for the previous twelve quaners with a rate of 4.5% and 4.7% as of December
31,2020 and 2019, respectively. For the UNHF primary pool, the distribution rare was
5.25% as of December 31, for both 2020 and 2019 respectively calculated as a percent
age ofthe average market value per unit for the previous twelve quarters.

The components df endowment return used for operations for 2022 and 2021 are
summarized belovj (3 in thousandsj:

G>mponentsofE

en

Pooiedendowmerit

Pooled endowm

Trusts, life income

gains utilized

Gains utilized to fur

Gains utilized to fur

Endowment retiiri

d

yield-campuses

It yield - affiliates

and annuities yield, net of

14. Operating expenses by Unction
The following tables summarize USNH's operating expenses by funaionai classification for the past two years fS

Supplies Intemal Depreciation/ 2022

Compensation & Services Utilities Allocations Amortization Total

Campuses-current funds

Instruction $180,507 $ 16,420 S  16 S  - $  - $196,943
Auxiliary services 43,449 41,556 55 58,109 - 143,169

Research and sponsored programs 83,251 81,241 218 - - 164,710

Academic support 58,711 23,391 2 - - 82,104

Student services 34,125 46,418 14 (72) - 80,485

Institutional support 59,462 15,329 86 (21,713) - 53,164

Operations and maintenance 20,165 35,706 18,255 (36,324) - 37,802

Fundraising and communications 7,828 5,584 - 6,139 - 20,551

Public service 11,983 2,638 2 _

_ 14323

Subtotal - current funds 499,481 269,283 18,648 6,139 _ 793,551

Campuses - other funds (233) (532) -
- 71,648 70,883

Affiliated entities 8,790 1,318 1 (6,139) - 3,970

Total $508,038 $270,069 $18,649 $  - $71,648 5868,404

Supplies Intemal Depreciation/ 2021

Compensation & Services Utilities Allocations Amortization Total

Campuses - current funds

Instruaion $218,633 S 10,786 S  (2) S  - $  - $229,417

Auxiliary services 44,008 34,426 55 55393 - 134,382

Research and sponsored programs 83,273 36,915 165 -
- 120,353

Academic support 65,690 20,594 -

-

- 86,284

Student services 38,758 69,167 14 (36) - 107,903

Institutional support 68,563 9,321 77 (17,988) - 59,973

Operations and maintenance 28,696 36,129 15,464 (38,077) - 42,212

Fundraising and communications 9,942 6,250 - 4,307 - 20,499

Public service 13,352 4,298 2 (150) - 17302

Subtotal - current fonds 570,915 227,886 15,775 3,949 - 818325

Campuses - other funds (212) 1,591 -

- 72,499 73,878

Affiliated entities 7,319 847 1 (3,949) - 4,218

Total $578,022 $230,324 $15,776 5  - $72,499 $896,621

ndowment Payout 2022 2021

 distribution - pooled campuses

d distribution - pooled affiliates

n used for operations

$ (290)

679

972

25,792

13,850

$41,003

in thousands):

S 6,488

564

17,516

14,025

$37,613
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15. Net position
It is USNH's policy to use restriaed funds before accessing unrestricted balances.Tbe table
below details USNH's net position as ofJune 30,2022 and 2021 ($in thousands):

Components of Net Position 2022 2021

Net Investment In capital assets $ 723,041 $ 72U56
Restricted financial resources

Nonexpendable

Historic gift value of endowment - campuses 144,896 134,754

Historic gift value of endowment - affiliated entities 183,676 171,812

Total restricted nonexpendable resources 328,572 306,566

Expendable

Held by campuses:

Accumulated net gains on endowment 67,601 94,413

Fairvalue of restriaed funds funaioning as endowment 16,297 18,014

Gifts, grants and contraas 59,772 32,910

Life income and annuity funds 23 33

Loan funds 1,870 2,425

Held by affiliated entities:

Accumulated net gains on endowment 49,552 84,055

Fairvalue of restriaed funds funaioning as endowment 47,943 56,073

Other 18,942 11317

Total restricted expendable resources 262,000 299,440

Unrestricted financial resources

Held by campuses:

Educational and general reserves (1,995) (12,259)

Auxiliary enterprises 103,691 45,528

Internally designated reserves 126,479 22,199

Unrestriaed loan funds 1,261 1,401

Unexpended plant funds 46,284 101,614

Fairvalue ofunrestriaed funds funaioning as endowment 101,861 246,033

Other 1,095 862

Less: postretirement medical liability" (74311) (78,490)

Held by affiliated entities:

Fair value ofunrestriaed funds functioning asendowment 1,404 1316

Other 1,907 1,775

Total unrestiicted finarKiai resources 307,176 330779

Total net position $1320,789 $1,657341

''■As discussed in Note 7, the 2022 and 2021 postretirement medical liability is shown net of the related
deferred inflows arxJ outflows of resources. See Note 11 for additional information in this regard.

16. Commitments and contingendes
USNH expects to continue to incur costs In testing, personal protective equipment,
and cleaning related to COVID-19, although at a lesser degree than in prior years.
While the significant business disruption brought on by the COVID-19 pandemic
seems to be easing with the high rate of vaccination In New Hampshire, there is
still considerable uncertainty about the long-term Implications of this pandemic on
higher education and the ultimate financial Impact and duration cannot be estimated
at this time.

USNH holds Insurance for losses related to real property, as well as professional, envi
ronmental, and general liability claims. Property coverage is limited to S500 million in
the aggregate with varying deductible levels. Liability coverage and deductible levels
are based on management's assessments of the risks of related losses. Settlements
below the relevant deductible amounts are funded from unrestricted net position.

USNH makes expenditures in connection with restricted government grants and
contracts, which are subjea to final audit by government agencies. Management is of the
opinion that the nu nber ofdisallowances, if any, sustained through such audits would not
materially affeathe financial position, results of operations, or cash flows of USNH.
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Exp enses and Changes in Net

yjears erxled June 30,
2022 2021

Gifts and other sl pport
investment incorfie
Total revenues

Distributions to LNH

Administrative anc other expenses
Total expenses
Increase/(decre4se) In net position

$ 39 $ 32
(27) 68

12 100

25 28

10 8
35 36

$(23) $ 64

Condensed infbrtnation from the Statements
of Cash Flows for the years ended June 30, 2022 2021

Receipts from giftfe and other sources
Payments to UNH and suppliers
Net cash used irj operating activities
Net cash provide^ by investing activities
Net cash provided by noncapital
financing acti\iities

Change in cash Qnd equivalents

$ 28
(35)

(7)
3

11

$  7

$ 24
(37)
(13)

7

A copy of the comp ete financial statements for UNHF can be obtained on its website
at httpsV/www.unh edu/give/financial-reports or by contaaing the Advancement
Finance and Admin stratlon Office at (603) 862-1584.
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Required Supplemental Information (Unaudited)

Postretirement Medical Plan
Schedule ofChanges in Total 0PE6 Liability and Related Ratios for theyears ended June 30, (5 in thousands):

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

Service costs S  1,132 5  1,143 S 1,247 5  1,359 5  1,416
Interest 1,792 2,444 3,339 3,024 3,627
Benefit payments (5337) (4,795) (5,084) (6381) (6,923)
Differences between expected and actual experience 363 (999) 849 (1311)
Changes in benefit terms

- (9333) (318) _

Changes in assumptions'" (6,126) 7336 7,664 (4,968) (4,857)
Net change In postretirement medical liability (8,176) (4,404) 7,697 (6,966) (8,248)
Total Postretirement Medical Plan liability - beginning ofyear 86,037 90,441 82,744 89,710 97,958
Total Postretirement Medical Plan liability - end ofyear S 77,861 5 86,037 5 90,441 5 82,744 5 89,710
Current ponion S  7,201 5 5,342 5 4,412 5  5,331 5 5,837
Covered payroll 5289,072 5303329 5 298,040 5290,287 5290,107
Total liability as a percentage of covered payroll 26.9% 283% 30.3% 285% 30.9%

Additional Retirement Contribution (ARC) Program
Schedule of Changes in Total Pension Liability and Related Ratios for the years ended June 30, ($ in thousands):

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

Service costs S  26 5  22 5 37 5  31 5  41 5  103
Interest 32 52 91 66 88 118
Benefit payments ® (714) (343) (111) (123) (95)

(89)
(518)

Differences between expeaed and actual experience (164) - (200) (328)
Changes in assumptions 3 36 70 (97) 26 (5)
Net change in ARC liability (817) (233) (113) (123) (29) (630)
Total ARC liability at beginning of year 1325 2,058 2,171 2,294 2,323 2,953
Total ARC liability at end ofyear 5 1,008 5 1,825 5 2,058 5 2,171 5 2,294 5 2,323
Current portion 5  42 5  865 5 217 5  200 5  95 5  455
Covered payroll $12,138 512,732 5 2,275 524,369 526,646 529,409
Total liability as a percentage of covered payroll 83% 143% 9.2% 8.9% 8.6% 7.9%

Operating Staff Retirement Plan
Schedule ofChanges in Net Pension Assets and Related Ratios for the years ended June 30, (5 in thousands):

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017®

Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Beginning balance 56,549 S 5,863 5 6,186 56376 5 6,700 s  -
Employer contributions -

-

- -

- 6,700

Plan administrative costs - - - (13) (13) -

Net investment income (754) 1,143 173 407 274 -

Benefit payments (488) (457) (496) (584) (585) -

Rduciary net position 55,307 5 6,549 55,863 56,186 5 6,376 56,700

Total pension liability at end of year (4,593) (4,992) (5,431) (5,875) (5,652) (5,707)

Net pension asset 5  714 $1,557 5 432 5 311 5  724 5  993

Plan net position as a percentage of total pension liability 115.5% 1312% 08.0% 1053% 112.8% 117.4%

Plan Pension Liability
Beginning balance $(4,992) 5(5,431} 5(5,875) 5(5,652) 5(5,707) 5(6,345)

Service costs (1) (6) (7) (3) - (20)

Interest, net of aauarial gain/loss (79) (41) (65) (290) (292) (298)

Benefit payments 488 457 496 584 585 956

Changes in assumptions (9) 29 20 (514) (238) -

Total pension liability at end ofyear 5(4,593) 5 (4,992) 5(5,431) 5(5,875) ${5,652} 5(5,707)

Covered payroll 5  122 5  120 5 815 S 850 5 961 5 1,007

Net pension asset as a percentage of covered payroll 585.2% 12973% 53.0% 36.6% 75.3% 98.6%

Seeaccompanying independent auditor's repo T,

Notes to Schedules:

'"Changes in assumptions relate to discount rate changes. The rates were 2.1% for FY22,2.1% for Pt'21,2,7% for Y20,

4,1% for FYl 9, and 3.4% for FYl 8 based on a change in the related index. See Note 7 for additional information
'^fiscal year 2017 benefit payments included separation costs in larger amounts.
"'Reflects payments and adjustments made before the establishment of the related trust on June 29,2017.
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